MIRA
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Sept. 24, 2014




Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

100 Constitution Plaza
Hartford, Connecticut 06103
Telephone (860)757-7700 - Fax (860)757-7743

MEMORANDUM

TO: MIRA Board of Directors

FROM: Moira Kenney, HR Specialist/Board Administrator
DATE: Sept. 19, 2014

RE: Notice of Regular Board Meeting

There will be a Regular Board Meeting of the Connecticut Resources Recovery
Authority Board of Directors on Wed. Sept. 24, 2014, at 9:30 a.m. The meeting will be
available to the public in the Board Room at 211 Murphy Rd., Hartford, CT 06103.

Please notify this office of your attendance at (860) 757-7787 at your earliest
convenience.




I

111

IV.

VI

VIL

VIL

Materials Innovation Recycling Authority
Regular Board of Directors Meeting
Agenda
Sept. 24, 2014
9:30 AM

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Portion

A % hour public portion will be held and the Board will accept written testimony and
allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes. The regular meeting will
commence if there is no public input.

Minutes

1. Board Action will be sought for Approval of the Regular July 24, 2014, Board
Meeting Minutes. (Attachment 1).

2. Board Action will be sought for Approval of the Special Telephonic July 30,
2014, Board Meeting Minutes. (Attachment 2).

Policies & Procurement Committee Reports

1. Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding a Subordination
Agreement with Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation Associated with a Real
Property Easement at the South Meadows Station Site (Attachment 3).

2. Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding Use of Reserves to
Pay Certain FY’15 Legal Costs (Attachment 4).

Finance Committee Reports

1. Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Concerning Casualty Program
Renewals (Attachment 5).

2. Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding 2014 Year End
Audit (Attachment 6).

Chairman and President’s Reports

Other Reports

1. Remarks from Deputy Commissioner McCleary followed by Discussion with
MIRA customer municipalities.

Executive Session

An Executive Session will be held to discuss pending htigation, trade secrets,
personnel matters, security matters, pending RFP’s, and feasibility estimates and
evaluations.




TAB1




MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FOUR HUNDRED AND FORTY-FOURTH JULY 24,2014

A regular meeting of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board of Directors was
held on Thurs. July 24, 2014, in the Board Room at 100 Constitution Plaza, Hartford, CT. Those present

were:

Directors: Chairman Don Stein (present via telephone)
John Adams (present via telephone)
Ralph Eno
Joel Freedman (present via telephone)
Jim Hayden
Andy Nunn (present via telephone)
Scott Shanley (present via telephone)
Bob Painter (Mid-Conn Ad-Hoc)

Present from CRRA in Hartford:

Tom Kirk, President

Mark Daley, Chief Financial Officer

Jeffrey Duvall, Director of Budgets and Forecasting

Peter Egan, Director of Environmental Affairs and Operations
Laurie Hunt, Director of Legal Service

Moira Kenney, HR Specialist/Board Administrator

Chairman Stein called the meeting to order at 9:28 a.m. and said a quorum was present.

PUBLIC PORTION

Chairman Stein said the agenda allowed for a public portion in which the Board would accept
written testimony and allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes.

As there were no members of the public present wishing to speak, Chairman Stein proceeded
with the meeting agenda.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL TELEPHONIC JUNE 18, 2014, BOARD
MEETING MINUTES

Chairman Stein requested a motion to approve the minutes of the Special Telephonic June 18,
2014, Board Meeting. Director Eno made the motion which was seconded by Director Hayden.

The motion to approve the minutes was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Eno, Director Freedman, Director Hayden, Director Nunn, and Director
Shanley voted yes. Director Painter abstained.




Directors

>
<
o

Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Ralph Eno
Joel Freedman
Jim Hayden
Andrew Nunn
Scott Shanley

XXX XXX |X

Ad-Hocs
Bob Painter, CSWS X

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR JUNE 26, 2014, BOARD MEETING
MINUTES

Chairman Stein requested a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular June 26, 2014, Board
Meeting. Director Hayden made the motion which was seconded by Director Adams.

The motion to approve the minutes was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Eno, Director Freedman, Director Hayden, Director Nunn, and Director
Shanley voted yes. Director Painter abstained.

Directors E Aye | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Ralph Eno
Joel Freedman
Jim Hayden
Andrew Nunn
Scott Shanley

XXX XX

Ad-Hocs
Bob Painter, CSWS X

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL TELEPHONIC JUNE 30, 2014, BOARD
MEETING MINUTES

Chairman Stein requested a motion to approve the minutes of the Special Telephonic June 30,
2014, Board Meeting. Director Eno made the motion which was seconded by Director Hayden.

The motion to approve the minutes was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Eno, Director Freedman, Director Hayden, Director Nunn, Director Painter,
and Director Shanley voted yes.




Nay | Abstain

>
<
]

Directors

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Ralph Eno
Joel Freedman
Jim Hayden
Andrew Nunn
Scott Shanley

XK KX XX | X

Ad-Hocs
Bob Painter, CSWS X

MOTION TO TABLE THE RESOLUTION REGARDING MATERIJALS INNOVATION AND
RECYCLING AUTHORITY ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO SECTION 5.3.1 OF THE
AUTHORITY’S PROCUREMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES. RESOLUTION
REGARDING PURCHASE OF JET FUEL, AND THE RESOLUTION CONCERNING
POLLUTION LEGAL LIABILITY INSURANCE.

Chairman Stein requested a motion to table the resolution listed above. Director Shanley made
the motion which was seconded by Director Nunn.

The motion to table was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman Stein, Director Adams,
Director Eno, Director Freedman, Director Hayden, Director Nunn, Director Painter and Director
Shanley voted yes.

Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Ralph Eno
Joel Freedman
Jim Hayden
Andrew Nunn
Scott Shanley

X XXX XX | X

Ad-Hocs
Bob Painter, CSWS X

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

Chairman Stein said he and Director Freedman were part of a meeting with Deputy
Commissioner Macky McCleary of the Connecticut Department of Environmental and Energy
Protection (hereinafter referred to as “CT DEEP™) to discuss the RFP process. He said Deputy McCleary
asked that MIRA’s Sept. Board meeting be moved to Wed. Sept. 24, 2014, in order to hold a strategic
planning session with the CT DEEP after the regular meeting.




PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Mr. Kirk referred the Board to the Supplemental package for financial updates. He noted the
power price has been lower than expected for the summer months.

Mr. Kirk said there is a South Meadows plant issue which he would like to bring to the Board’s
attention. He said recently there was a problem with turbine 6, one of the two steam turbines’ operating
at the plant. Mr. Kirk said due to an electro hydraulic control issue the unit came down for a couple of
days. He said unit 6 is the turbine which has had capital expenditures for improving and modernizing its
control mechanisms. Mr. Kirk said managements’ initial fix was to the electronic signal from the control
room which was being interrupted. He said an electronic card was procured and replaced on a rush basis.
Mr. Kirk explained that we had modest success and MIRA is now operating at full load however for a
short period of time some waste had to be diverted.

Mr. Kirk said the diverted waste was mostly from the transfer station at a negligible cost was
associated with the diversion. He said the electric hydraulic mechanism original equipment on the
turbine is being reverse engineered and rebuilt which will take four-six weeks and should complete the
fix to the control issue. Mr. Kirk said there are no performance shortfalls due to the manual nature of the
turbine as management is letting turbine 5 float with the load.

Mr. Kirk said this is a reoccurring problem. He said the unit was built in the 50°s and the original
equipment is not available for replacement any more. Mr. Kirk said management has to re-engineer and
re-design replacements from time to time. He said management is meeting with NAES to review the
parts with an eye toward updating these turbines.

Director Adams said under Tab B, the service charges for solid waste participating towns shows
a deficit in terms of dollars however under operating statistics under participating tons there is a positive
variance. He asked how these two correlate. Mr. Daley said he would provide Director Adams with a
detailed analysis of the information. He said management is working on a new Board report to better
synchronize the statistics with the revenues.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chairman Stein requested a motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation,
trade secrets, personnel matters, security matters, pending RFP’s, and feasibility estimates and
evaluations. The motion, made by Director Adams and seconded by Director Hayden, was approved
unanimously. Chairman Stein asked the following people join the Directors in the Executive Session:

Tom Kirk
Mark Daley
Peter Egan
Laurie Hunt

The Executive Session began at 9:51 a.m. and concluded at 10:26 a.m. Chairman Stein noted that
no votes were taken in Executive Session.




The motion to go into Executive Session was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Director Adams, Director Freedman, Director Eno, Director Hayden, Director Nunn, Director
Painter and Director Shanley voted yes.

Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Ralph Eno
Joel Freedman
Jim Hayden
Andrew Nunn
Scott Shanley

XX XXX (X

Ad-Hocs
Bob Painter, CSWS X

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Stein requested a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion to adjourn was made by
Director Eno and seconded by Director Adams and was approved unanimously.

There being no other business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 10:26 a.m.

Resp§tfu}1‘ Submitted,

Moira Kenney
HR Specialist/Board Administrator




TAB 2




MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FOUR HUNDRED AND FORTY-FIFTH JULY 30,2014

A special telephonic meeting of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board of
Directors was held on Wed. July 30, 2014, in the Board Room at 100 Constitution Plaza, Hartford, CT.
Those present by telephone were:

Directors: Chairman Don Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
John Adams
Ralph Eno
Joel Freedman
Jim Hayden
Andy Nunn
Scott Shanley

Present from CRRA in Hartford:

Tom Kirk, President

Mark Daley, Chief Financial Officer

Thomas Edstrom, Interim Risk Manager

Peter Egan, Director of Environmental Affairs and Operations
Laurie Hunt, Director of Legal Service

Moira Kenney, HR Specialist/Board Administrator

Others: Brendan Finely, Sullivan & LeShane; John Pizzimenti, USA Hauling.
Chairman Stein called the meeting to order at 9:59 a.m. and said a quorum was present.

PUBLIC PORTION

Chairman Stein said the agenda allowed for a public portion in which the Board would accept
written testimony and allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes.

As there were no members of the public present wishing to speak, Chairman Stein proceeded
with the meeting agenda.

RESOLUTION REGARDING MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO SECTION 531 OF THE AUTHORITY’S
PROCUREMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES,

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. Director Adams made the
motion which was seconded by Director Eno.




RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors hereby adopts the following revisions to the
Authority’s Procurement Policies and Procedures (the “Policy”), amending and restating in its
entirety Section 5.3.1 of the Policy, Professional or Technical Services, Definition;

5.3.1 Definition

Professional or Technical Services include, but are not limited to, legal, accounting,
insurance brokerage, surety bonding, executive recruitment, auditing, architectural,
engineering, public relations, financial advisory, management consulting, bond
underwriting, system management, facilities management, telecommunications, security
and lease services.

Mr. Kirk explained this resolution will provide a clarification to the procurement and policy
procedures which MIRA uses for procuring professional services. He said as written the current
language seems to imply that MIRA needs to go out for insurance bids every three years. Mr. Kirk said
management believes that the original intent of the policies’ creators was to require a public bidding
process every three years for insurance brokers and not necessarily policies.

Mr. Kirk said MIRAs insurance broker, AON Risk Services, does not recommend going out to
bid this year. He said this change will clarify the intention of the procurement and allow the Board to
take on the next item on the agenda concerning pollution legal liability insurance (hereinafter referred to
as “PLL”. Director Shanley said this is a very unusual situation due to the transfer of landfills to the
State.

Ms. Hunt said MIRA went out to bid for PLL a year ago and if it were to enter into an agreement
for an eight month policy this year at the recommendation of its broker it would be four years between
bids.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Vice-Chairman Barlow, Director Adams; Director Eno, Director Freedman, Director Hayden,
Director Nunn, and Director Shanley voted yes.

>
<
©

Directors Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
John Adams

Ralph Eno

Joel Freedman

Jim Hayden

Andrew Nunn

Scott Shanley

XXX XXX |X[X

RESOLUTION REGARDING PURCHASE OF JET FUEL FOR THE SOUTH MEADOWS JET
TURBINE FACILITY

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. Director Adams made the
motion which was seconded by Director Eno.




RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to execute a purchase order with Santa
Buckley Energy, Inc. for purchase of Ultra Low Sulfur No. 1 Diesel Fuel to support operation of
the South Meadows Jet Turbine Facility, substantially as presented and discussed at this meeting.

Mr. Kirk said this is a fairly routine purchase for diesel oil which will allow MIRA to keep the
minimum amount of oil on site and available to meet its capacity commitments and keep the jet turbine
facility up and operational. He said occasionally in the past MIRA has had to purchase o1l by emergency
procurement. Mr. Kirk said this purchase will reduce the need for emergency purchases.

Mr. Kirk said the purchase order is for a not to exceed number of $1.323 million which is
contained in the property division budget.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Vice-Chairman Barlow, Director Adams, Director Eno, Director Freedman, Director Hayden,
Director Nunn, and Director Shanley voted yes.

Nay | Abstain

>
<
(1]

Directors

Chairman Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
John Adams

Ralph Eno

Joel Freedman

Jim Hayden

Andrew Nunn

Scott Shanley

XXX XX [ X[

RESOLUTION REGARDING POLLUTION LEGAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. Director Freedman made the
motion which was seconded by Director Shanley.

WHEREAS: This Board has previously adopted its fiscal year 2015 Landfill Division Operating
Budget providing $809,500 in funding for the portion of such year that MIRA will operate the
landfills prior to the transfer of operating responsibility to the Connecticut Department of Energy
and Environmental Protection (CT DEEP); and

WHEREAS: After such transfer of operating responsibility to CT DEEP, MIRA will retain
certain liability previously considered by this Board; and

WHEREAS: This Board desires to continue to retain Pollution Legal Liability Insurance for the
landfills after the transfer to CT DEEP as a means to protect against such liabilities.

NOW THEREFORE, be it




RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to purchase and secure a Pollution Legal
Liability Insurance policy for a term of thirty eight months commencing 8/1/2014 and a total
premium of $606,259 to be paid in two installments on or before 8/1/2014 and 10/1/2015
substantially as discussed and presented at this meeting.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the fiscal year 2015 Landfill Division Operating Budget is
hereby increased by $105,298 to $914,798 to provide funding for such Pollution Legal Liability
Insurance policy for FY 2015. Such increase represents a 60% allocation to the Landfill
Division for the 11 months ending June 30, 2015.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to approve the use of funds
from the following Landfill Division Reserves, as appropriate, to pay for the allocated premium
cost of such policy:

Shelton Landfill Post Closure Reserve
Waterbury Landfill Post Closure Reserve
Wallingford Landfill Post Closure Reserve
Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve
Ellington Landfill Post Closure Reserve
Landfill Operating Account

~ Mr. Kirk said this issue has been discussed at length as part of the MOU negotiation and
development. He said it was determined after some evaluation that a three year contract was preferred
by the Board in lieu of the more traditional and historical approach to single year contracts.

Mr. Kirk said MIRA’s coverage will now be for $40 million over three years instead of the prior
$20 million in a single year. He said the three year policy requires two payments, one immediately and
one about half way through the year. Mr. Kirk said the advantages of a three year policy have been
discussed. He said a disadvantage is that the $40 million budget would be reduced by any claims
(although they are unusual and not expected). He said management however feels the three year
agreement is valid especially considering the current transfer of operations and the need for sufficient
coverage to protect MIRA while this transfer takes place.

Mr. Kirk said the write-up indicates MIR A has to send a payment of $303,000 by Friday
however there are actually thirty days after the due date to send the funds. He said in addition that the
price came in $9,000 cheaper than the original bid price.

Director Eno asked if this policy covers unanticipated exposure with Wallingford as well. Mr.
Kirk said the policy is essentially identical to the prior policy and no changes in the risk profile are
expected.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Vice-Chairman Barlow, Director Adams, Director Eno, Director Freedman, Director Hayden,
Director Nunn, and Director Shanley voted yes.




Directors

>
e

e | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
John Adams

Ralph Eno

Joel Freedman

Jim Hayden

Andrew Nunn

Scott Shanley

PR XXX XXX | X

UPDATE ON FINANCIAL IMPACT OF TURBINE OUTAGE

Mr. Kirk said a total of 11,034 tons were diverted from the plant during the jet turbine outage.
He said the financial impact, when adjusting for the costs of disposal, crediting the tipping fee, and
noting the savings associated with not having to bring the tonnage from the transfer station into the
Hartford facility is $16,000. Mr. Kirk said in addition 11,000 tons of fuel was not converted into energy
and with current pricing at about 3 cents roughly that is a loss of $17,010 in energy revenues for a total
overall impact of $33,000 during the 76 hour turbine outage. Mr. Kirk said the turbine is back up and
running and the needed part will be reverse engineered so there is a spare.

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Stein requested a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion to adjourn was made by
Director Adams and seconded by Vice-Chairman Barlow and was approved unanimously.

There being no other business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 10:10 a.m.

Res;yctmll Submitted,
Y/

HR Specialist/Board Administrator




TAB3




RESOLUTION REGARDING A SUBORDINATION
AGREEMENT WITH CONNECTICUT NATURAL GAS
CORPORATION ASSOCIATED WITH A REAL PROPERTY
EASEMENT AT THE SOUTH MEADOW STATION SITE

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to execute a subordination
agreement with Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation (CNG) to subordinate an
existing CNG easement on the South Meadow Station site to an Environmental
Land Use Restriction (ELUR), substantially as presented and discussed at this
meeting.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Contract for

A Subordination Agreement at the South Meadow Station Site

Presented to the CRRA Board on: September 24, 2014

Vendor/ Contractor(s): Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation
Effective date: Upon Execution

Contract Type/Subject matter: Subordination Agreement

Facility (ies) Affected: South Meadow Station Site

Original Contract: Easement Recorded on June 8, 1955

Term: Not Applicable (Runs with the Land)
Contract Dollar Value: $7,500.00 in Aggregate

Amendment(s): Not applicable

Term Extensions: Not Applicable

Scope of Services: Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation (CNG)

holds an easement across the South
Meadow Station site for a natural gas line.
CNG agrees to subordinate its easement to
an Environmental Land Use Restriction
(ELUR) to be recorded as part of the South
Meadow Station site remediation. MIRA
agrees to reimburse CNG for costs
associated with complying with the ELUR,
up to $7,500.00 in aggregate.

Other Pertinent Provisions: Not Applicable




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Subordination Agreement Associated with the South
Meadows Site

September 24, 2014

Executive summary

This is to request approval for the President to execute a Subordination Agreement with
Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation (CNG). Under this Subordination Agreement, CNG agrees
to subordinate its easement for a natural gas line at the South Meadow Station site to an
Environmental Land Use Restriction (ELUR), which is to be recorded as part of the South
Meadow Station site remediation. In exchange for this subordination, MIRA agrees to reimburse
CNG up to $7,500.00 in aggregate for costs associated with complying with the ELUR.

Background

On December 22, 2000 CRRA and TRC Companies, Inc. executed a contract entitled Exif
Strategy v Contract For South Meadow Station Site Between Connecticut Resources Recovery
Authority And TRC Companies, Inc. (the “Exit Strategy tv Contract”). The Exit Strategy v
Contract was a prerequisite to the transfer of the South Meadows property and the Electric
Generating Facility (EGF) from Connecticut Light & Power to CRRA in early CY 2001. The
purpose of the Exit Strategy tm Contract was to establish TRC as the “Certifying Party” under
the Connecticut Transfer Act, thereby shifting the environmental remediation responsibility to
TRC following transfer of the property from CL&P to CRRA. TRC is therefore responsible for
remediation of pre-existing pollution conditions at, under or migrating from the site as required
by applicable law, including, but not limited to, the State of Connecticut Remediation Standard
Regulations (“RSR”) and the Transfer Act.

Under the Exit Strategy Tv Contract, TRC is obligated to select and complete remediation
activities at the site that fulfill all requirements of applicable law without materially interfering
with current and future Site operations (as such operations were defined at the time the Exit
Strategy T Contract was executed). As permitted under the RSR, the Exit Strategy tv Contract
allows TRC to utilize ELURs to achieve remediation goals appropriate for an
industrial/commercial (“I/C”) site located within a “GB” groundwater designation area (i.e., an
area where degradation of groundwater has occurred due to urbanization and where treatment
would therefore be required before groundwater could be consumed). TRC has therefore
remediated highly-contaminated soils and groundwater to meet I/C and GB standards. TRC has




also placed appropriate minimum depths of clean cover soils and/or constructed engineered
controls to render remaining contamination inaccessible and/or environmentally isolated.

Under the Exit Strategy v Contract, MIRA is obligated to consent to appropriate ELURs,
provided that TRC consults with MIRA prior to implementing each ELUR, and that such ELURs
do not materially interfere with MIRA’s use of the site. Additionally, it is MIRA’s obligation “to
ensure that... all Interest Holders consent and subordinate their interests to appropriate ELURs
or other restrictions or controls required in connection with the Remediation, which are
necessary to render soils inaccessible or environmentally isolated, or to restrict portions of the
Site from use for residential activities, as defined in the RSRs; provided, however, that any such
ELURs shall not materially interfere with... any Interest Holder’s use of its interests in the site,
as currently conducted or as described in Exhibit F” of the Exit Strategy tv Contract.

Discussion

On June 8, 1955, the Hartford Electric Light Company (predecessor company to CL&P) and the
Hartford Gas Company (predecessor company to CNG) recorded an easement in the City of
Hartford Land Records. The easement allows the Hartford Gas Company “to construct, install,
repair, maintain, replace, inspect, operate and remove gas pipeline, metering and regulating
facilities” at the South Meadow Station site. This easement is associated with the natural gas
line that runs across a portion of the site to the Power Block Facility. By virtue of its easement,
CNG is an “Interest Holder” at South Meadows Station site; therefore, CNG must subordinate its
easement to the proposed ELUR before the ELUR can be recorded in the City of Hartford Land
Records.

In return for its agreement to subordinate its easement to the ELUR, CNG has requested that
MIRA reimburse CNG for any expenses incurred by CNG as a result of compliance with the
Subordination Agreement, the ELUR, or as a consequence of the Easement being subordinate to
the ELUR. Examples of such expenses may include, but are not necessarily limited to, the
following:

e Preparation and submission of a soil management plan and an application to DEEP for
release of the ELUR when CNG needs to disturb soil subject to the “do not disturb”
ELUR; and,

e Costs for oversight of excavation activities by a Licensed Environmental Professional
(LEP), if DEEP requires such oversight as a condition of approving the release of the
ELUR.

The Subordination Agreement stipulates that the aggregate amount to be reimbursed by MIRA is
not to exceed $7,500.00 (seven thousand five hundred dollars).

Financial Summary

CNG has requested that MIRA reimburse CNG for expenses at the time that those expenses are
incurred; CNG has explicitly stated that they do not want a payment “presumptively” at this
time. CNG has agreed to an aggregate cap in potential costs to MIRA of $7,500.00. MIRA
would pay for such costs from the Property Division operating account during the fiscal year(s)
in which CNG submits request(s) for reimbursement. It should be noted that CNG may not
undertake activities that would trigger a request for reimbursement for many years.




TAB 4




RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING USE OF RESERVES TO PAY CERTAIN FY ‘15
LEGAL COSTS

RESOLVED: That the President is authorized to expend up to $75,000 from the
Hartford Landfill Closure Reserve (or, in the event that closure has been completed and
the Closure Reserve closed, the Landfill Operating Account), for payment of legal costs
incurred in fiscal year 2015 in connection with the MIRAs continued operation of the
solar electricity generating facility located at the Hartford landfill and the potential sale of
electricity from the facility to the City for use at its public works complex.




MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

Request regarding Authorization for Use of Reserve Funds for Payment of
Projected Legal Expenses

September 24, 2014

Executive Summary

This is to request board authorization to use funds from the Hartford Landfill
Closure Reserve to pay certain projected fiscal '15 legal expenses.

Discussion:

In conjunction with the closure of the Hartford Landfill, MIRA installed a one-
megawatt solar generation facility on the landfill cap, and entered into
agreements with CL&P for the interconnection of the solar facility and the sale
of zero emission renewable energy credits. Pursuant to its terms, MIRA's
lease of the Hartford Landfill with the City will terminate upon approval of
MIRA’s Closure Certification Report by the Commissioner of the Department
of Energy and Environmental Protection, and, in accordance with the
Memorandum of Understanding between MIRA and DEEP, DEEP will
subsequently be responsible for the post-closure care of the landfill.

MIRA has been meeting with the City’'s public works representatives to
discuss plans for operation and maintenance of the solar array following
completion of closure of the landfill. The parties are now investigating the

_logistics of connecting the solar facility to the City’s public works complex and
the sale of electricity from MIRA to the City, and researching related
regulatory requirements. Consummation of these plans will require, among
other things, the drafting and negotiating of an electricity sales agreement and
an access agreement. These matters require the assistance of outside
counsel and the determination of a funding source for the payment of
resulting legal fees.

Since the solar facility is part of the DEEP-approved landfill closure plan,
these projected legal costs appear to be most appropriately funded from the
Hartford Landfill Closure Reserve (or, in the event that closure has been
completed and the Closure Reserve closed, the Landfill Operating Account),
and we are now seeking board authorization to pay these costs from the said
reserve(s).




TABS5




RECOMMENDED DRAFT RESOLUTION FOR THE MIRA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE PURCHASE OF COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY, UMBRELLA LIABILITY, AND COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE
LIABILITY INSURANCE

RESOLVED: That MIRA’s Commercial General Liability insurance be purchased from
ACE American Insurance Company (Rating A+) with a $1,000,000 limit, $25,000
deductible, for the period 10/1/14 — 10/1/15 for a premium of $215,430 as discussed at
this meeting; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That MIRA’s Commercial Automobile Liability insurance
be purchased from ACE American Insurance Company (Rating A+) with a $1 million
limit, liability coverage on all vehicles and comprehensive and collision coverage on
twelve (12) passenger vehicles and light trucks with a $1,000 deductible, for the period
10/1/14 = 10/1/15 for a premium of $47,038 as discussed at this meeting; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That MIRA's Umbrella Liability insurance be purchased
from ACE Property & Casualty Insurance Company (Rating A+) with a $25 million
limit, $10,000 retention, for the period 10/1/14 — 10/1/15 for a premium of $153,130

Premium
MIRA 2013 Renewal 2014 Renewal Difference
Premium Including | Premium Including Over
Coverage Landfills Landfills Expiring
General Liability $215,000 $215,430 $430
Commercial Automobile $60,115 $47,038 -$13,077
Umbrella $157,500 $153,130 -$4,370
Grand Total: $432,615 $415,598 -$17,017
Exposure Basis:
Tons of Municipal Solid Expiring Estimate: Renewal Estimate:
Waste Received 1,008,000 1,010,000 0.20%
Rate Per 1,000 Tons of
Municipal Solid Waste Expiring Rate: Renewal Rate:
Received 213.294 213.297 0.00%




Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
Casualty Insurance Program Renewal
September 24, 2014

Executive Summary: EXHIBIT I

Background

MIRA’s current casualty insurance program, consisting of Commercial General Liability,
Automobile Liability and Umbrella Liability policies, expires on October 1, 2014 and
needs to be renewed. (This document - Exhibit I - briefly summarizes the coverage under
these policies.)

New Program Marketing and Results

MIRA and Aon began discussions in June regarding the renewal of the upcoming
Casualty insurance program. These discussions were taking place at the same time
MIRA, Aon and ACE were in negotiations regarding the revised placement of the
Pollution Liability program relative to the landfill related exposure.

During this process, it was determined that if ACE would be reasonable and competitive
regarding the upcoming Property & Casualty renewal, a remarketing of these lines would
not be necessary for the following reasons:

1) ACE had negotiated in good faith relative to the replacement of the Pollution Liability
policy ~

2) It could be beneficial to MIRA to continue strengthening the relationship with ACE for
long term market benefits

3) A thorough marketing effort had been conducted for the 10/1/13-14 program —
approaching 13 different markets (many of whom declined due to risk) — that confirmed
the ACE program was the most competitive and comprehensive available. With very
little change has occurred in the marketplace for the applicable carriers since then, results
were likely to remain unchanged with another marketing effort.

Based on these circumstances, it was agreed that if ACE could provide renewal terms in
the range of a 0-5% rate increase, there would be no need to market the program for the
10/1/14-15 term. The results of the program negotiations were that ACE was able to
reach the goal of a flat rate renewal for the program — based on the existing relationship
between ACE and MIRA, positive loss history for the 10/1/13-14 term and negotiation of
terms by Aon.




General Liability

ACE American Insurance Company (ACE) currently maintains a Best Rating of A++:VX
and has been a strategic partner for MIRA dating back to 2007. ACE’s quote for the $1
million General Liability program with a deductible of $25,000 carries a premium of
$215,430. This premium is slightly up from last year’s premium of $215,000 but that is
driven purely by the equivalent increase in exposures (tons of municipal solid waste)
used to underwrite the program (from $1,008,000 to $1,010,000; .2%) ACE will not
write a multi-year policy for General Liability. Terrorism coverage (TRIA) is included
in the quoted premium.

e Overall insurance industry benchmarking indicates rate increases in the 3-5%
range for primary casualty insurance. ACE has offered a flat renewal rate quote
at expiring terms, conditions and exclusions; -

e Since 2007 ACE has consistently reduced or maintained premiums/rates; 2012
has been the only year during that period of time with a rate/premium increase —
driven mostly by recent loss history at the time;

o ACE has also been agreeable to enhancing coverage terms and conditions over the
years. Unlike many carriers, ACE’s General Liability policy:

o provides coverage for abuse and molestation;
o provides a free loss prevention engineering survey;

o Includes catastrophe management with a $250,000 sublimit;
e Claims handling is included in the premium.

¢ Note that the only coverage change for this year is the inclusion of a Mandatory
Exclusion for ACCESS OR DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL OR
PERSONAL INFORMATION AND DATA-RELATED LIABILITY - WITH
LIMITED BODILY INJURY EXCEPTION. This is the carriers attempt to
remove Cyber and Privacy related risks from the General Liability policy that are
more appropriately covered under a Cyber Liability policy. This has become an
industry standard for many carriers and, if Cyber Liability coverage is required,
can be obtained through obtaining a separate policy.




Umbrella Liability

ACE offered an Umbrella limit of $25 million as described in the specifications. The
premium is $153,130. This premium is nearly 3% ($4,370) lower than last year.

The Umbrella policy attaches to the General Liability, Auto Liability and our Employers’
Liability (Part II of the Workers Compensation Policy with CIRMA.)

Multi-year policies are not available. Terrorism (TRIA) is included in the quoted
premium.

On a side note, ACE’s policy is an Umbrella form and would be issued by an Admitted
insurer. As an Admitted carrier claims reported under the ACE program would be
eligible for state guaranty fund (Sec 38a-836 et seq.) protection. (Connecticut’s guaranty
fund states that each insurance company licensed to issue coverage, with the exceptions

" prescribed by law; must belong to the insurance guaranty association for the lines of insurance
it writes. If an insurance company defaults, the guaranty association pays valid claims of
policyholders and other claimants, up to the dollayr limits of the policy subject to maximums set
by state law. Property and casualty policyholders may receive partial refunds of unearned
premiums).

Automobile Liability

‘MIRA sought coverage for twenty-four (24) units for the 10/1/14-15 term.
Comprehensive and collision coverage is only provided on the newer twelve (12)
passenger vehicles and light trucks with low mileage, while liability coverage is on the
entire fleet of 24 units.

The 24 vehicles used for underwriting of the renewal is a reduction from the 28 vehicles
used for the 10/1/13-14 placement. ACE provided a renewal quote for $1 million of
coverage for a premium of $47,038. This year's premium is $13,077 (-21.75%) lower
than last year’s $60,115 — but is a flat rate renewal based on the reduction of exposures.

¢ The ACE policy provides a composite rate, eliminating the need to notify the insurer
when vehicles are acquired or deleted during the year;

e The ACE policy provides full glass replacement without a deductible; something MIRA
has utilized on many occasions.

Terrorism (TRIA) coverage is not available on Commercial Auto Liability insurance.

Multi-year policies are not available for Automobile Liability.




RECOMMENDATIONS

Aon and MIRA risk management believe that ACE continues to provide the most
comprehensive and competitively priced program for MIRA’s current and historical
exposures and that renewing the existing program provides the optimum coverage to
protect MIRAs risks — based on industry intelligence and premium value.

In consultation with our broker/consultant Aon and management, the Finance Committee
recommends that the Board of Directors accept, the following quotes offered by ACE
Insurance Company for the period 10/1/14 — 10/1/15:

$215,430 for $1 million of Commercial General Liability - ACE

$153,150 for $25 million of Umbrella Liability - ACE

$47,038 for $1 million of Commercial Automobile Liability — ACE

Total Premium - $415,598

Please note that the General Liability and Automobile Liabality policies will be subject to
audit within 6 months of policy expiration based on actual exposures.




TAB 6




MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2014

September 24, 2014

RESOLVED: That the Board hereby accepts the Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal
Year Ending June 30, 2014, substantially as discussed and presented at this meeting.




eri%s l on a Rei Authority

MATERIALS INNOVATION AND
RECYCLING AUTHORITY

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority

B Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:

Balance Sheets

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position

Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Supplementary Information:

Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets
Combining Schedule of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in
Net Position

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows

Combining Schedule of Net Position

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

PAGE(D)

3-19

20-21

23

24-42

43-45

46
47-48

49-50

51-52

This document is pnnted on recycled content paper

i

EXHIBIT

n

m

D




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

‘This document is printed on recycled content paper

i1




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Materials Innovation and Recyling Authonty
Hartford, Connecticut

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying {inancial statements of the Materials Innovation and Recyling (Authority), a component
unit of the State of Connecticut, which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2014 and the related statements
of revenucs, cxpenses, and changes in nel position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the rolated notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,; and
maintenance of intermal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained m Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfonning procedures o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intcral control relevant to the cntity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinlon on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes cvaluating the
appropriatencss of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, the financial position of the

Authority as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.




Other Matters
Prior Year Financial Statements

The financial statemnets of the Authorily, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, were audited by Bollam, Sheedy,
Torani & Co. LLP, which merged with Sax Macy Fromm & Co., PC to form SaxBST LLP as of January 1, 2014. Bollam,
Sheedy, Torani & Co. LLP’s report dated October 1, 2013, expressed an unimodified opinion on thosc statements.

Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles gencrafly accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis on pages X through XX be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applicd certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consisiency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. Wc
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence 1o express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Authority’s basic financial statements. The
combining schedules on pages XX through XX are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 2 required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information is the respomsibility of management and was derived from and relates
dircetly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic {inancial statements. Such infornmation has
been subjected 10 the auditing proccdures applied in the audit of the basic financial statemcnts and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information dircetly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated __ , 2014, on our
consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s mternal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

New York, New York
, 2014

SaxBST LLP Certificd Public Accountants




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Materials Innovation and
Recycling Authority’s (the “Authority”) financial performance provides an overview of the
Authority’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2014. Please read it in conjunction
with the Authority’s financial statements that follow this section. The MD&A is intended to
provide meaningful information to the reader for the current year, and in comparison to prior
years, thereby cnhancing the reader’s understanding of the Authority’s financial position and the
results of its operations. Effective June 6, 2014 the State of Connecticut designated the
Authority as successor to the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (CRRA). Considering
the nature and scope of the Authority’s designation as CRRA’s successor, described fully in
Note 1.A, the Authority’s financial statements reflect all operating and non-operating revenues
and expenses for the full fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, and all assets, liabilities, deferred
inflows and the net position of the Authority as of June 30, 2014, including all financial activities
of CRRA during this period prior to assumption by the Authority.

In FY 2014, the Authority generated total

operating revenue of $123.4 million, and Change in Net Position

incurred  $106.1 million in operating gg,%
expenses before depreciation, resulting in 32000
operating income before dcpreciation of 5 2,05.50
$17.3 million. After §16.1 million in § 4,000

58

depreciation and amortization expenses, the
Authority  gencrated $1.2  million in

00

RREReen
8888

U

operating income.  The Authority also L Ry FY Fy
generated net non-operating revenue of $2.3 . 2014 2013 2012
million resulting in a total increase in the “@Change in net ' o -
o . . - : oo 83517 8253)  $(11,998
Authority’s net position of $3.5 million. . position . >(8,253) ( ‘)

Total operating revenues increased .by
2.9%, while total operating expenses before depreciation decreased by 5.4%, from fiscal year
2013 to fiscal year 2014. The Authority out-performed budget expectations by generating
operating revenues that were 4.6% above budget, incurring operating expenses before
depreciation that were 6.3% below budget, and operating each of its projccts and divisions on a
financially self-sufficient basis according to budget. While the Authority’s total assets decreased
by $47.2 million (19.5%), its total liabilities decreased by $50.7 million (68.4%).

The most significant economic factor with the potential to adversely affect the Authority is its
reliance on wholesale energy revenue to keep solid waste disposal fees for its Connecticut Solid
Waste System (CSWS) below the levels that trigger customer contract termination provisions,
the limited options available to the Authority through its other divisions to relieve this pressure
on tip fees when energy revenues are low, and an anticipated redevelopment of the CSWS in the
context of this business model. Management’s response to this challenge, discussed further
under the Economic Factors and Outlook section of this MD&A, has been to create a “Tip Fee
Stabilization Fund”, undertake certain initiatives necessary to sustain this fund over the long term
by strengthening the Authority’s existing project and division structure, and to position the




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Authority administratively to hedge against wholesale energy price volatility dependent on
market circumstances.

Using This Report

The Authority is an enterprise fund of the State of Connecticut. Enterprise funds are used in
governmental accounting to present activities where fees are charged to external customers for
goods that are sold or services that are rendered. Usually these activities are financed by debt
that is secured solely by a pledge of the operating revenues of that activity.

The Authority’s financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. The financial
statements utilizc the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities.
This means that all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Authority are
included on its Statement of Net Position, and that all revenues and expenses are recognized
when earned and incurred, respectively, on its Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position.

The Authority’s Net Position is presented in three components (i) invested in capital assets, net
of related debt, (ii) restricted, and (i1} unrestricted. Net position presented as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consists of all significant capital asscts owned by the Authority, net of
accumulated deprcciation, and réduced by any outstanding balances of bonds or other debt
related to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Capital assets include
land, improvements to land, easements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery,
equipment, infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in opcrations
that have an initial useful life beyond one year. Capital assets are depreciated over their useful
lives and periodic depreciation expense is reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. Net Position is presented as restricted when constraints are placed on
the Authority’s assets by creditors, grantors, laws or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or cnabling legislation. -

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reflect the operating
revenues and expenses and non-operating revenue and expenses of the Authority for the fiscal
year with the difference representing the change in net position. That change, combined with the
prior year-end net position total, reconciles to the net position total at the end of the current fiscal
year.

The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash activities for the fiscal year rcsulting from operating
activities, investing activities, capital and related financing activities, and non-capital financing
activities. The net result of these activities added to the beginning of the ycar cash balance
reconciles to the cash balance at the end of the current fiscal year.

Unless otherwise stated, all values presented in this M,D&A are in thousands.




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is important to
understanding the information included in the financial statements. They are presented
following this M,D&A and the Authority’s financial statements.

Supplemental Information

Supplemental information includes a Combining Schedule of Net Position (summary), a
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, a Combining
Schedule of Cash Flows, and a Combining Schedule of Net Position (detail). These schedules
segment the Authority’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2014 between the various
operating divisions and waste to energy facilities (projects) comprising the Authority. This
scgmentation reflects the terms and conditions of facility operating contracis, service
agreements, related documents and statutes generally providing for the financial self-sufficiency
of such projects and divisions as described further in Note 1 A to the Financial Statements
(Entity and Services). For FY 2014, thesc projects and divisions include:

e Authority’s General Fund

» (Connccticut Solid Waste System
e Mid Connecticut Project

» Southeast Project

s Southwest Division

o Authority’s Property Division

e Authority’s Landfill Division

» Recycling Division

Required Additional Reports
Required additional reports include a report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Statement of Net Position

The net position of the Authority is summarized in Table 1. Net position is a measurement of the
financial condition of the Authority at one point in time. As indicated in Table 1, the Authority’s
net position as of June 30, 2014 (total assets less total liabilities) was $171,766 which represents
a $3,518 (2.1%) increase from the prior year. The $3,518 increase in Net Position is the result of
a decrcasc in total assets of $47,221 offset by a larger reduction in total liabilities of $50,739.

TABLE 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of June 30,

(Dollars in Thousands)

2014 2013 2012
ASSETS
Current unrestricted assets $ 81,282 $ 111,531 S 101,160
Current restricted assets 2,694 6,705 22875
Total current assets 83,976 118,236 124,035
Non-current assels: :
Restricted mvestments - 8,184 8,177
Capital assets. net 110475 114 859 119,385
Development costs, nct 784 1,177 1,576
Total non-current assets 111,259 124220 129,138
TOTAL ASSETS $ 195235 $ 242456 S 2583173
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES
Current unrestricted labilities $ 13,281 $ 20,955 $ 7,792
Current restricted habilitics 4,096 2,870 16413
Total current habilities 17,377 32,825 24205
Long-term unrestricted habilities 3,500 31,195 42713
Long-term restricted habilities ) - 8,083 8,183
Total long-term liabilities 3,500 39,278 50,896
TOTAL LIABILITIES 20,877 72,103 75,101
Deferred nflows 2,592 2,105 1,571
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 23,469 74,208 76,672
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 110476 114,859 116,348
Restricted 548 5,058 11,050
Unrestricted 60,742 48,331 49,103
TOTAL NET POSITION 171,766 168,248 176,501
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION S 195235 $ 242456 S 253,173
Assets

The Authority’s total current and non-current assets are further summarized on Table 2. The
$47,221 reduction in total assets is primarily attributable to the expenditure of reserves held
within the Authority’s Mid Connecticut Project and its Landfill Division, which are reflected as
cash and equivalents and restricted investments in Table 2. The expenditure of reserves from the
Mid Connecticut Project relate to landfill closure work at the Hartford Landfill, as well as other




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Compouent Unit of the State of Connecticut

project closeout activities including settlements and defense of claims discussed further in Note
12. The Mid Connecticut Project’s total assets declined by $16,232 during fiscal year 2014. The
expenditure of reserves from the Authority’s Landfill Division relate primarily to a transfer of
funds to the state as required by state legislation and discussed further in Notes 4 and 11, coupled
with the advance of initial working capital to the Connecticut Solid Waste System reclasstfied as
a contribution in FY 2014. The Landfill Division's total assets declined by $41,032 during fiscal
yecar 2014. These reductions were offset partially by a large increase in the Authority’s prepaid
expenses. The increase in prepaid expenses reflects recognition of operating funds advanced to
the Authority’s contract operator of the Hartford (South Meadows) waste to energy facility and
the Authority’s jet turbine — powered electric generating peaking units.

TABLE 2
SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2014 2014 2013 2013
Increase/ Percent Increase/ Percent
{Dccerease)  Increase/ {Decrease)  Increase/
2014 2013 from 2013 (Decrease) 2012 from 2012 (Decrease)
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38827 S 87559 S (28.732) {32.8%) S 76331 S 11,228 14.7%
Accounts receivable, net of allowances - 14,058 17,073 3.5 (17.7%) 14,009 3,064 21.9%
Inventory 0,069 6,544 (475) (7.3%) 6,370 174 2.7%
Prepaid cxpenses 2328 355 1973 555.8% 4450 (4,095) (92.0%)
Total Unrestricted Assets 81,282 111,531 (30,249) (27.1%%) 101,160 10371 10.3%
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,694 6.705 (4011 {59.8%) 22875 (16,170) (70.7%)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 83976 118,236 (34,260) (29.0%%) 124,035 (5.799) (4.7%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted investments - 8,184 (R.1847  {100.0%) 8,177 7 0.1%
Capital Assets:
Depreciable, net 79,068 24,517 {5,449) (6.4%) 85,262 {745) (0.9%)
Nondepreciable 31,407 30,342 1,065 3.5% 34,123 (3,781) (11.1%)
Development costs, net 784 1,177 {393} (33.4%) 1,576 {399) (235,3%)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 111,259 124220 {12,961} (10.4%) 129,138 (4918) (3.8%)
TOTAL ASSETS $ 195235 § 242456 § (47221) (19.5%)  § 253,173 (10,717 (4.2%)
Liabilities

The Authority’s total current and long term liabilities are further summarized on Table 3. The
$50,739 reduction in total liabilities is primarily attributable to reductions in the current and long
term portion of liabilitics associated with the closure and post closure care of the Authority’s
landfills. The current liability declined by $15,448 largely due to the progress of work necessary
to closc the Hartford Landfill. The long term portion declined by $35,778 largely due to the
transfer of the Authority’s landfill post closure obligations to the state Department of Energy and
Environmental Protection discussed further in Notes 4 and 11. An additional contributing factor
to the reduction in total liabilities is a $2,932 (25.7%) reduction in accrued payables. This is
largely due to the Authority’s payment of a contractor’s unamortized investment in recycling




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
& Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

facility equipment, which was accrued in fiscal year 2013, and required as part of an early
termination of this contract.

TABLE 3
SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dellars in Thousands)

2014 2014 2013 2012
Increase/ Percent Increase/ Percent
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease} Increase/
2014 2013 from 2013 ({Decrease) 2012 from 2011 (Deccrease)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payabk from wwestricted assets:
Closure and post-closure care of Jandfilk S 43 S 14214 5 (14,171 (99.7%) 3 1330 S 12884 968.7%
Accounts payable 4,740 4311 429 10.0% 1,658 2,653 160.0%
Accerued expenses and other current Habilities 8.498 11430 (2.932) (25.7%) 4,804 6.626 137.9%
Total payable from unrestricted asscets 13281 29955 (16,674) (55.7%) 7.792 22,163 284.4%
Pavable from restricted asscts:
Bonds Payable, net - - - - 4,134 (4.134)  (100.0%)
Clasure and post-closure care of landfills . - - - 1,298 (1,298}  (100.0%)
Accounts payabie - 33 (33} (100.0%) §50 (817) (96.1%)
Acccrued expenses and other current labilities 4.0%6 2837 1259 44.4% 10,185 (7,348) (72.1%)
Total payable from restricted assets T 4006 2810 1226 2.9% 16467 (8.165)  (49.6%)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 17,377 32,825 {15448) (47.1%) 24259 13,998 57.7%

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Payabk from unrestricted assets:

Clhsure and post-closurc care of landfills -~ 27,695 (27.695)  (100.0%) 39213 (11,518} (29.4%)
Other labilities 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - 0.0%
Total payable from unrestricted assets 3,500 31,198 (27.695) (88.8%) 42,713 (11,518) (27.0%)
Payable from restricted assets:
Closure and pest-closure care of landfills - 7367 (7.367)  (100.0%) 7359 8 0.1%
Other habilitics - 716 (716)  (100.0%) 824 (108) {13.1%)
Total payable from restrcted assels - 8,083 (8,083) (100.0%) 8.183 (100 (1,2%)
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 3.500 39278 (35.778) (91.1%) 50,896 (11.618) (22.8%)
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 20877 S 72103 8§ (51226) (71.0%) S 75155 (3,052) (4.1%)
Defersed nflows 2,592 2,105 § 487 23.1% 1,517 588 - 38.8%
TOTAL LIABLLITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS $ 23469 § 74208 § (50,739 {68.4%) S 76672 § (2464) (3.2%)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The increase in nct position shown on Table 1 was generated from the change in net position
shown on Table 4, Statement of Revenues, Expenscs and Changes in Net Position for the ycar
ended June 30, 2014, Changes in net position represent the results of operations of the Authority
(i.e. its net income). The increase in net position for fiscal year 2014 of $3,518 represents a
142.6% increasc from the prior year when the Authority’s net position declined by $8,253.

The increase in net position was achieved through a 2.9% increase in total operating revenue,
coupled with a 5.4% decrease in total operating expenses, producing income before depreciation
of $17,280. Operating income (after depreciation) was $1,179 in fiscal year 2014 which
represents a $8.511 (116.1%) increase from fiscal year 2013. The Authority’s operating income
of $1,179 and its net non-operating revenue of $2,339 combine to produce the $3,518 increase in
net position.




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

TABLE 4
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating revenues

Operating expenses

Income (loss) before depreciation and amortization and
other non-operating revenues and (expenses)

Depreciation and amortization

Income (loss) before other non-operating
revenues and (expenses), net

Non-operatmg revenucs (expenscs), net

Change m net position

Total net position, beginning of vear

Total nct position, cnd of ycar

Revenues

2014 2013 2012
$ 123362 § 119866 $ 132,043
106,082 112,113 127,799
17,280 7,753 4244
16,101 15,085 16,242
1,179 (7,332) (11,998)
2,339 (921) -
3,518 (8,253) (11,998)
168,248 176,501 188,499
$ 171,766 $ 168248 $ 176501

Table 5 summarizes total operating and non-operating revenue.

Operating revenue increased by $3,496 (2.9%) from fiscal year 2013 to fiscal year 2014. This
increasc is driven by a substantial $14,190 (33.6%) increase in revenue from the salc of energy
offset by reductions in member service charges, other service charges and other revenue. The
increasc in revenuc from the sale of energy is largely attributed to energy produced by the
Authority’s CSWS and sold through ISO New England’s wholesale energy markets.

Abnormally cold temperaturcs in the winter of
2013 are credited with driving up wholesale
energy prices. The average wholesalc price
recerved by CSWS during fiscal year 2014 was
$.0697 per kilowatt hour compared to $.0358
per kilowatt hour in fiscal year 2013. While the
wholesale price increased significantly, the
energy produced declined by 3.2%. Energy
produced by the Southeast Project remained
under contract in fiscal year 2014, independent
of the wholesale market, at an average rate of

approximately $.257 per kilowatt hour.

$140,000
$120,000
$100,000
$80,000
$60,000
$40,000
$20,000
s_

Operating Revenue by Division ($000)

® Other

2 Landfill

¥ Property
-iSouthwest -
i Southeast
BMidCT
CSWS

FY2014 FY2013 FY2012

The reduction in member and other service charges 1s directly related to the Authority’s
transition from the Mid Connecticut Project to the CSWS as its primary operating facility. This
transition 1s described further in Note 1.A. The Mid Connecticut Project closed in FY 2013 with




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
K Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

the expiration of service agreements and retirement of debt. New service agreements were
established with fees based on cost recovery formulas. Since the cost to operate the CSWS is
lower than the cost to operate the Mid Connecticut Project, service fees and associated revenue
declined in proportion to the lower cost base. Service fees generated through the Southeast
Project and the Southwest Division remained relatively flat.

The reduction in other revenue is attributed to the acceptance of soil at the Hartford Landfill for
disposal as part of the landfill’s closure project. The Authority derived $4,514 in revenue for this
disposal service in FY 2013 which declined to $1,071 in fiscal year 2014 as this aspect of the
closurc project was completed. Additional contributing factors are closure of the Authority’s
recycling operation in Stratford and reduced recycling volumes associated with the transition
from the Mid Connecticut Project to the CSWS.

The increase in non-operating revenue is directly related the transfer of the Authority’s landfill
post closure care obligations and related reserves as detailed in Notes 4 and 11.

TABLE 8
SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
{Dollars in Thousands)

2014 2014 2013 2013
Increase/ Percent Increase/ Percent
{Decrease)  Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/
2014 2013 fram 2013 (Decrease) 2012 from 2012 (Decrease)
Operating Revenues: .
Member service charges $ 45588 % 49,145 % {3.557) (7.2%) $ 55966 § {6821y (12.2%)
Other service charges 16,513 18,512 {1999y  (10.8%) 20,860 (2348)  (11.3%)
Energy szles 56,451 4226 14,190 33.6% 46,547 {4,286) (9.2%)
Other operating revenues 4810 9,948 (3,138)  (3L6%) 8,670 1,278 14.7%
Total Operating Revenues 123,362 119366 3496 2.9% 132,043 {12,177 (9.2%)
Non-Opcrating Revenues:
Investment income 109 139 30 (21.6"%) 192 (53)  (27.6%)
Gain on write-oft of postclosure labilities 4,751 . 4,751 100.0% - -
Other income ) 190 67 123 183.6% 560 (493)  (88.0%)
Total Non-Operating Revenues 5,050 206 4844  2351.5% 752 (346)  (72.6%)
Total Revenues $128412 $120072 % 8,340 6.9% $132.795 §¢12,723) (9.6%)

1




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Expenses

Table 6 summarizes total operating

and non-operating expenses. Operating Expense by Project / Division {$000)
$160,0600 - ‘
Operating expenses declined by | $140,000 i Other
$6,031 (5.4%) from fiscal year 2013 | $120,000 atandfill
to fiscal year 2014.  Significant | $100,000 o
contributing factors to this reduction |  $80,000 sProperty
include reduced estimated liability $60,000 .iSouthwest
for t{le closure of the Hartford $40,000 wiSoutheast
Landfill, reversed accruals related to ,
: : $20,000 BMid CT
the resolution of contract operating s
BCSWS

charges associated with the Mid
Connecticut  Project and  other
savings associated with the transition
from Mid Connecticut to CSWS.

${20,000) -F¥2014 FY 2013

FY 2012

The $1,584 increase in non-operating expenses is related to settlement activity also with respect

to the Mid Connecticut Project.

TABLE 6

SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
{Dollars in Thousands)

2014 2014
Increase/ Percemt
(Decrease) Increase/

2013 2013
Increase/ Percent
(Decrease) Increase/

2014 2013 from 2013 (Decrease) 2012 from 2012 (Decrease)
Operating Expenses:
Solid waste operations $ 97583 § 99,194 § (1,611 (1.6%) $ 116261 $(17.067) (14.7%)
Maintenance and utilities 1,313 1.024 289 28.2% 900 124 13.8%
Landtill closure and post-closure (3,392) 1,862 (5.254)  (282.2%) 415 1,447 348.7%
Legal scrvices - external 3012 1,209 1,803 [49.1% 1.803 (594)  (32.9%)
Administrative and operational services 0,191 7,525 (1334 (17.7%) 7019 506 7.2%
Distribution to:
Member towns - 810 (81 100.0% - 810
SCRRRA 1,375 - 1.375 100.0% 1401 (1.401) 0.0%
SWEROC - 489 - {489) 100.0% - 489 0.0%
Total Operating Expenses 106,082 112,113 (6,031) (5.4%) 127.799 (15,686)  (12.3%)
Depreciation and amortization 16,101 15,085 1016 6.7% 16,242 (1,157 (7.1%)
Non-Operating Lxpenses:
Interest expense - 87 &7y (100.0%) 317 (230)  (72.6%)
Other expenses 2,711 1,040 1,671 160.7% 435 605 139.1%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 2711 1,127 1,584 140.6% 752 375 49.9%
Total Expenses $ 124894 $12832 {3,431) {2.7%) $144793 § (16468 (11.4%)

11




Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Budget versus Actual Performance

The Authority’s total operating budget for FY 2014 was
$122,698 including operating revenue of $117,906,
interest of $14, use of reserves totaling $3,978 and inter-
fund transfers of $800.

The primary source of funding for the budget is the
operating revenue generated by each project and division.
Operating revenue provides 96% of total budget resources
and includes solid wastc delivery fees, cnergy sales,
recycling sales and other revenue. Additional sources of
funding include use of previously established reserve
funds, and inter-fund transfers.

The opcrating budget provides balanced funding for the
operating expense budgets of cach project and division
which total $109,334, their reserve contributions which
total $8,704, their allocated share of the Authority’s
general administrative budget which totals $3,860 and
transfers out totaling $800. Operating expenses represent
83% of the total budget and include solid waste operations,
maintenance and utilities, closure and post closure care of
landfills, legal services and project —  specific
administrative and operations  services. Reserve
contributions funded in the FY 2014 operating budget
include set asides for the CSWS risk, legal and capital
reserves, the Property Division capital and future
development reserves, and severance reserves.

The Authority’s budget provides for the administrative
oversight of all projects and divisions including salaries
and benefits, and non-personnel services.

The CSWS consumes the largest portion of the total
operating budget ($65,392 or 53% including operating
expenses and reserve contributions).  The Southeast
Project represents 24% of the total operating budget and
the Southwest Project is 14%. Other divisions total 8% of
the budget.

The budget structure for the waste to energy facilities
(CSWS and Southeast) reflect the terms and conditions of
applicable municipal service agreements and operating
contracts that generally require fees for municipal waste
disposal to be set at the level necessary to fund each

12

FY 2014 Budget Resources

{so00)
$140,000
$120,000 w Operating
Revenues
$100,000
$80,000 # Use of
Reserves
$60,000
540,000 @ Transfers in
$20,000
$

FY 2014 Budgeted Expenditures

{$000}
$140,000
& Operating

$120,000 Expense
»100,000 w Authority

$80,000 Budget

$60,000 & Transfer Out

$40,000

$20,000 @ Reserve

Contributions

S

FY 2014 Project Budgets {$000}

5140000 & Mid Ct.
$120,000
B lLandfll
$100,000
$80,000 & Property
$60,000 1w Southwest
540,000 - @ Southeast
$20,000
@ (SWS
S




Materials Innovation and Recycling Buthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

facility’s net cost of operation. The net cost of operation represents the total operating budget
less non disposal fee revenue where non disposal fec revenue primarily consists of the sale of
electricity and use of the system by non-members.

The operating budget for the Southwest division funds the Authority’s use of waste disposal
capacity it preserved within the Bridgeport Waste to Energy facility upon expiration of the
project’s original development and operating contracts. The Authority contracts this capacity to
municipal customers and passes through its fcc disposal arrangement together with an
administrative fee that supports the Authority’s General Fund.

The operating budget for the Property Division is based on the estimated costs to operate the
facilities assigned to the division. These costs arc funded primarily through clectric sales
revenue from the Authority’s jet turbine powered electric generating peaking units and facility
lease income.

The operating budget for the Landfill Division is based primarily on long term estimates for the
Authority to tulfill its landfill post closure carc obligations established by federal and State laws
and regulations. These costs have been pre-funded through prior project fees and set aside in
reserve accounts and trust funds established for these purposes. -

The budget for the Mid Connecticut Project reflects only a sharc of thc Authority’s general
administrative budget.  Additional spending from this division for project close out activities
including settlements is approved on an as needed by the Board of Directors.

Table 7 summarizes the budget versus actual performance for each project and division. As
indicated, all projects and divisions outperformed operating revenue budgets with the exception
of the Southwest Division due to lower than anticipated waste processing. CSWS saw the
benefit of increased wholesale electric prices due to an abnormally cold winter. The Property
Division exceeded revenue budgets on the basis of reserve payments reccived through ISO New
England for the peaking units. Mid Connecticut rcalized additional revenue through disposal of
soils as part of the Hartford Landfill closure project. Total operating expenses were $7,112
(6.5%) under budget in total with only the Southeast Project and Property Division exceeding
initial budget estimates. Including all Net Non-Operating budget items, the Authority achieved a
total budget surplus of $8,824. ,

13




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
X Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Table 7

Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
FY 2014 Budget versus Actual Performance ($000)

Project/
Total Division Authority Total income Non
Operating Operating General Operating Before Operating Budget
Project / Division Budget Revenue Expenses Admin. Expenses |Depreciation {Net)* Balance
Authority General Fund S - $ - S 1]5 11 {1 $ 113 -
CSWS S 6458215 56170 S 21361% 583068 6,276 | S (6,276} $ -
Southeast Project $ 2891415 298825 13215 30,0141$ (1,100 S 1,100 5 -
Southwest S 17,688 1 S 17,111 | $ 57715 17,6881 S - S - S -
Property Division S 6,722 15 395015 354 | S 4,30415S 2,418 | S (2,418)} § .
tandfill Division $ -1 2,221 1% 396 | % 261718 (2,617)] % 2,61715 -
Mid Ct. Project $ - s - $ 264 $ 264 1S (264)] $ 2641 % -
Other $ - 18 - 18 - 13 $ - 1S - 18 -
Total S 117906 }S 1093345 3860 |S 113,194|S 4,712 ¢ S {4,712) $ -
Authority Total tncome Non
Operating Operating General Operating Before Operating Budget
Project / Division Actual Revenue Expenses Admin. Budget Depreciation {Net)* Balance
Authority General Fund $ - S $ - S - $ - $ - 5 -
CSWS S 70,0675} $ 54,986 { $ 2,121 1S 57,107 {5 12,968 | S (6,537){ $ 6,431
Southeast Project $ 29,1951$ 3051118 142 1S 306535 {1,458}1 $ 103919 (419)
Southwest S 13,389{S 1290715% 572 (S 13,479 {90){ - S {90)
Property Division S 9,677 18 4,449 | $ 588 1 S 5037]% 46403 {4,768)] S (128)
Landfill Division S 11518 464 | S 4301 % 894 1S {779)] S 1,477 | $ 698
Mid Ct. Project S 1,096 { $ (367)] S 5615 [911); § 2,007 | S 333 1§ 2,340
Other S {185){ $ {177)] § - S {177){ $ {8} S - S (8)
Total $ 1233625 102,1731¢§ 39095 1060821S% 17,2805 {8,456)] 5 8,824
Authority Tota! Income Non
Variance QOperating Operating General Operating Before Operating Budget
Over {Under} Budget Revenue Expenses Admin. Budget Depreciation (Net}* Balance
Authority General Fund $ $ . S (1} S (1) 8 11s (s -
CSWS $ 549315 {1,184} S {15)] (1,199} $ 669215 (261} 6,431
Southeast Project S 2811$ 629 ]S 10}5 63915 {358} S (61}} 5 {419)
Southwest S {4299)| S (4.204)} S (SHS  (4209)] % (90)] $ - s {90}
Property Division S 295518 499 | S 234 1S 73318 2,222 1S {2,350}t $ {128)
Landfill Division S 1158 (1,757}} § 3415 {1,723)] § 1,838 1S {1,140){ $ 698
Mid Ct. Project S 1,096 1S {967} $ {208} 5 {1,175} S 2,271 1S 6915 2,340
Other 5 (185} $ {1771 $ $ (17731 $ (8)] % - 13 {8)
Total $ 5456 1% (7,161} 5 49 1S {7,112)} S 1256815  (3,744)| $ 8,824

Operating revenue budget excludes interest income budgetd for the Authority General Fund, CSWS and Southeast Project. Non
operating (Net) includes interestincome, use of reserve funds and transfers in as additional budget resources, and transfers
out, reserve contributions and landfill postclosureliability adjustments as additional budgeted expenses

14




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Capital Assets

n Capita] assets (net of | Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Deprecdiation)

accumulated depreciation) as  s3a0000 ($000) S
of June 30, 2014 totaled
$110,475. This represents a
$4,384 (3.8%) reduction from | $100,000
net capital assets as of June | $80,000
30, 2013 which totaled | 46000
$114,859. The Authority’s

32,3

$120,000

. . . $40,000
investment in capital assets |

includes land, plant, | $20000
equipment and construction 50

FY 2014 FY 2013 Fy 2012

in progress.
Hland @mPlant i Equipment & Construction in Progress

The Authority owns land

used for waste management and related purposes in Bridgeport, Ellington, Hartford, Essex,
Stratford, Shelton, Torrington, Waterbury and Watertown. Its plants primarily include the waste
to energy facility in Hartford, four transfer stations and two recycling facilities. Equipment
includes vchicles and machinery used in the Authority’s waste processing and recycling
operations.  Construction in Progress represents ongoing work for plant and equipment
improvements or additions not yet in service. As of June 30, 2014 this primarily consisted of
boiler and bag house improvements in the CSWS trash to energy facility.

The reduction in net capital assets is due to the recognition of depreciation and the sale and
disposal of assets for fiscal year 2014 partially offset by additions to plant, equipment and
construction in progress during fiscal 2014. These changes to capital assets are described more
fully in Note 3. T

Long-Term Debt Issuance, Administration and Credit Ratings

As detailed in the table on the following page, as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the
Southeast Project had $54,795 of total outstanding debt that is not carried on the Authority’s
books. This includes the Authority’s Resource Recovery Revenue Refunding Bonds (Covanta
Southeastern Connecticut Company Project — 2010 Scries 2010A) supported by a Special Capital
Reserve Fund (SCRF) with the State, and three series of Corporate Credit Revenue Bonds.  The
SCRF is a contingent liability of the State available to replenish any debt service reserve fund
draws on bonds that have the SCRF designation. The funds used to replenish a debt scrvice
reserve draw are provided by the State’s General Fund and are deemed appropriated by the
Connecticut legislature. See Notc 1A for additional information on the structure of the Southeast
Project.

15




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

STATUS OF OUTSTANDING BONDS ISSUED AS OF JUNE 38, 2014

On
Standant X= Original Principal | Autherity's
Moody's | & Poor's | SCRF- Maturity | Principal {Ouvtstanding| Books
r 4 ¥
PROJECT / Series Rating | Rafing |Backed'| Dated Date (S000) (S000} {3000
SOUTIEAST PROJECT
2010 Series A - Project Refunding © Aa3 | AA X | o2no | 1SS | 27,750 11,295 .
CORPORATE CREDII REVENUE BONDS
1992 Series A - Corporate Credit Bal NR -~ losous | swisz| 30,0000 30,000 .
2001 Series A - Covinta Southeastern Connecticut Company-t Bal NR - LI/1S/01 | 11/E5/1S 6,750 6,750 -
2001 Senes A - Covanta Southeasiern Conneeticet Company -1 Bal NR - TIZISAO0N | 11/15/15 6,750 6,750 -
TOTAL PRINCIPAL BONDS QOUTSTANDING 54,795 -
PSURIE = Specnt Capral Reserve Fund of the Stale of Connectiod,
*The 20118 Scries A Finngs rekmded the 1998 Series A Boods o1 enally ssucd m the amowunt of $87.650,000 on August |8, [998,
NR = Not Rated
Economic Factors and Outlook
The most significant economic factors | T e
with the potential to adversely affect the Ct. Day Ahead LMP
Authority arc the CSWS business - $0.1800 e
model’s rcliance on wholesale energy
revenuc to keep solid waste disposal fees e 2010
below the levels that trigger customer 2011
contract termination provisions, the s 2012
limited options available to the Authority —2013
through other meons to rclieve this 553 % 1555 :é g —2014
pressure  on tip fees when cnergy 5 g §E535¢2 S
P 2 -
revenues are low, and an anticipated g 248 7

redevelopment of the CSWS in the
context of this model.

The Connecticut Solid Waste System — The business model for CSWS provides that
participating town waste disposal fees (“tip fees”) arc to be set at the level necessary to fund the
net cost of operation of the CSWS. The net cost of operation is the total operating budget less
non-disposal fce revenue where non-disposal fee revenue primarily consists of the sale of
clectricity generated from the CSWS waste to energy facility and use of the CSWS by non-
members. Conscquently, price volatility in the wholesale encrgy market directly impacts the tip
fees charged to member towns. Some of the Authority’s member town contracts include tip fee
caps above which the towns may terminate the contract (“opt out tip fee”). In the last five fiscal
years, average wholesale electric prices ranged from a high of $0.0703 per Kwh to a low of
$0.0375 per Kwh. Based on the current FY 2015 busincss model, this is sufficient to reduce tip
fees to a low of $47 per ton (27% below the long term contract opt out), or to increase tip fees to
a high of $80 per ton (24% above the long term contract opt out). To address this matter,
management has established a “Tip Fee Stabilization Fund” which may be drawn upon to
support the CSWS net cost of operation when wholesale energy prices are low, thereby avoiding
the opt out price, and which is to be reimbursed as wholesale energy prices rcbound. The Tip
Fee Stabilization Fund was established within the Authority’s Property Division with income

16




Materials Innovation and Recycling Buthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

from the Authority’s peaking units as the primary source of funding. The value of the Tip Fee
Stabilization Fund at June 30, 2014 was $2.4 million. Property Division Income will continue to
flow to this fund in FY 2015 to an authorized level of $7.0 million which management considers
sufficient. Management is also preparing bid and contract documents for power purchase
agreements with third parties for the potential direct purchase of a portion of the CSWS electric
generation as a hedge against volatile wholesale energy prices. Additional cost control measures
have been implemented to manage the budget model within the confines of the opt out price.

The Authority’s Property Division — The primary source of revenue to the Property Division is
participation in the wholesale energy markets of the Authority’s peaking units. The majority of
revenue from the peaking units is derived specifically from ISO New England’s Forward
Capacity Reserve and Real Time Reserve markets. In these reserve markets, wholesale energy
providers are compensated to have electric generation capacity available, not to produce and
cxport cnergy to the grid. The Authority’s peaking units are infrequently called to produce
energy because they are older and less economically efficient to operate than other power plants
in New England. This inefficiency triggers certain federal and State air quality and emissions
regulations requiring issuance of a “Trading Order”™ that permits the peaking units to run for a
limited number of hours subject to the Authonty’s acquisition of “Discrete Emission Reduction
Credits” (DERCs). While the Authority’s existing Trading Order extends through May 31, 2017,
the Capacity Supply Obligations it has incurred to ISO New England will soon extend through
May 31, 2019. To address this matter, management has commenced a study to determine the
feasibility of retrofitting the peaking units to meet air quality standards and eliminate the need
for the Trading Ordcr. Management has also begun assembling the data, analysis and reports
necessary to “delist” the peaking units from the pool of electric generating resources available to
ISO New England and avoid further extending the Authority’s Capacity Supply Obligations if
the retrofit is not feasible.. Additional efforts are being undertaken to assess the feasibility of
extending the Trading Order as a stop gap measure. The Authority may also enter ISO New
England’s Reconfiguration Auctions where Capacity Supply Obligations arc transferred among
wholesale energy producers, or may enter direct agreements to transfer such obligation(s) as
necessary. These efforts will determine the sustainability of electric generating revenue to the
Authority’s Property Division and therefore its ability to sustain the Tip Fee Stabilization Fund
during extended pertods of depressed wholesale energy prices.

The Autherity’s Landfill Division — In FY 2014, under State mandate, the Authority
transferred its landfill post closure care obligations with respect to five landfills to the State’s
Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) and $31 million (approximately
92%) of its landfill post closure care reserves to the State. The transfer of these obligations and
reserves did not otherwise affect the Authority’s ownership and/or leasehold interest in the
landfills or reduce the Authority’s landfill liability. See Notes 4 and 11 for additional
information concerning these transfers. To address this matter, management has secured a
pollution legal liability insurance policy including coverage for the five landfills for a term of
thirty-eight months commencing August 1, 2014. The policy provides coverage of $40 million
per occurrence and $40 million aggregate over the policy term with a $250,000 deductible. The
Authority estimates that its retained landfill post closure reserves are adequate to fund such
coverage for at least the next ten years at existing premiums. When these reserves are expended,
payment obligations for insurance and related expenses including premiums, deductibles and

17




Materials Innovation and Recycling Buthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticat

claims outside of policy coverage will need to transfer from the Landfill Division to the CSWS
or Property Division. The timing of such transfer is dependent on the timely closure of the
Hartford landfill and assumption of those obligations responsibilities by DEEP, the future cost of
insurance coverage and any required payment of deductibles or claims.

Redeveloping CSWS

In FY 2014, the State passed Public Act 14-94 (the “Act”) forming the Authority and designating
it as successor to the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (CRRA). One of the core
objectives of the Act is to set a process in motion, with specific roles and deadlines for the
Authority, DEEP and the private sector that will bring about the redevelopment of the CSWS.
The major milestones of this initiative are summarized below.

e By January 1, 2016 DEEP, in consultation with the Authority, is to issue a Request for
Proposals to redevelop the CSWS.

s By January 1, 2017 not more than three short-listed respondents selected by DEEP are to
conduct and complete any required feasibility studies with the Authonty’s cooperation.
DEEP is required to hold a public hearing concerning the feasibility studies but the
deadline is not specified in the legislation.

» By July 1, 2017 the short-listed respondents are to submit final proposals to DEEP.

e By September 15, 2017 DEEP is to submit a report on the nature and status of CSWS
redevelopment proposals to the State legislature.

= By October 30, 2017 the State legislature may hold a public hearing concerning DEEP s
status report. :

By December 31, 2017 DEEP may select one final proposal and direct the Authority to
enter into an agreement with the applicable respondent for the redevelopment of the
CSWS.

While the nature, cost and funding mechanisms for this redevelopment are not yet determined,
the underlying legislation did include proposal selection criteria sensitive to these matters. - The
Act requires DEEP to consider the level of investment proposed and whether the proposal is in
the best interest of the municipalities under contract with the Authority, including maintcnance
or reduction of tip fees. The Act further provides that the selection of a final proposal by DEEP,
in consultation with the Authority, is not to be construed as a legislative mandatc that otherwise
would increase the “opt out tip fee™ established in certain municipal contracts.

18




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all
those with an interest in the Authority’s finances. Questions conceming any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Chief
Financial Officer, 100 Constitution Plaza -- 6® Floor, Hartford, CT 06103.

19




MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT 1
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut Page 1 of 2
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 AND JUNE 30, 2013
(Dollars in Thousands)
RESTATED
ASSETS June 2014 June 2013
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 58,827 $ 87,559
Accounts receivable, net of allowances 14,058 17,073
Inventory 6,069 6,544
Prepaid expenses 2,328 355
Total Unrestricted Assets 81,282 111,531
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,694 6,705
Total Restricted Asscts 2,694 6,705
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 83,976 118,236
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets:
Investments - 8,184
Capital Assets:
Depreciable, net 79,068 84,517
Nondepreciable 31,407 30,342
Development and bond issuance costs, net 784 1,177
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 111,259 124,220
TOTAL ASSETS S 195,235 h 242,456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

20




MATERIALS INNOYATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT I
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut Page 2 of 2
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 AND JUNE 30, 2013
(Dollars in Thousands)

RESTATED
June 2014 June 2013
LIABILITIES, BEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 43 14214
Accounts payable 4,740 4311
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilitics 8,498 11,430
Total payable from uirestricted assets 13,281 29,955
Payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payabic - 33
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities 4,096 2,837
Total payable from restricted assets 4,096 2870
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 17,377 32.825
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Payablc from unrestricted assets:
Post-closure care of landhlls - 27.695
Other Habilities ' 3,500 3,500
Total payable from wwestricted asscts 3,500 31,195
Payable from restricted assets:
Post-closure care of landfilis - 7,367
Other habilitics - 716
Total payable tfrom restricted assets - 8.083
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 3,500 39278
TOTAL LIABILITIES ) 20,877 72,103
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows 2,592 2,105
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 23,469 74,208
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 110,476 114,859
Restricted tor:
Covanta Wallingford escrow 500 500
Other restricted net position 48 225
City of Hartford Recycling education fund - 143
Energy generating facility - 1,646
Montville landfili post-closure - 1,026
DEEP trust - landfills - §t7
Shelton Jandfill future use - 701
Total Restricted 548 5,058
Unrestricted 60,742 48.331
TOTAL NET POSITION 171,766 168,248
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES AND NET $ 195,235 3 242.456

POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

21




MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
{(Dollars in Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an tntegral part of these financial statements

EXHIBIT 11

RESTATED
2014 2013
Operating Revenues
Service charges:
Members $ 45,588 h) 49,145
Others 16,513 18,512
Energy sales 56,451 42,261
Other operating revenues 4,810 9,948
Total Operating Revenues 123,362 119,866
Operating Expenses
Solid waste operations - 97,583 99,194
Maintenance and utilitics 1,313 1,024
Closure and post-closure care of landfills (3,392) 1,862
Legal services - external 3,012 1,209
Administrative and Operational services 6,191 7,525
Distribution to SCRRRA 1,375 -
Distribution to member towns - 810
Distribution to SWERQC - 489
Total Operating Expenses 106,082 112,113
Operating Income (Loss) before depreciation and
amortization 17,280 7,753
Depreciation and amortization 16,101 15,085
~ Operating Income (Loss) 1,179 (7,332)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 109 139
Gain on Write off of post closure liabilities 4,751 -
Other income (expenses), net (2,521) (973)
Interest expense - (87)
Non-Operating Expenses, Net 2,339 (921)
Change in Net Position 3,518 (8,253)
Total Net Position, beginning of period 168,248 176,501
Total Net Position, end of period S 171,766 3 168,248

22




MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
(Dollars in Thousands)

EXHIBIT Il

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Payments received from providing services $
Payments to suppliers and employees
Distribution to member towns
Distribution to SWEROC
Distribution to SCRRRA

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Proceeds from Investments
Interest on investments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from sales of equipment
Payments for landtill closure and post-closure care liabilities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Interest paid on long-term debt
Principal paid on long-term debt

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities
Other interest and fees

Net Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities:
Operating loss $
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided (used) by operating activitics:
Depreciation of capital asscts
Amortization of development and bond issuance costs
Provision for closure and post-closure care of landfills
Other income (expenses)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of transfers:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other habilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $

2014 2013
126,561 $ 117,354
(107,180) (106,859)
- (810)
- (489)
1,375) -
18,006 9,196
8,184 .
109 145
8,293 145
595 49
(45,200) (1,786)
(11,786) (8.287)
- (113)
- {4,135)
(56,391) (14,272)
(2,651) (1
(2,651) (1
(32,743) (4,942)
94,264 99,206
61,521 S 94264
1,179 S (10,248)
15,709 14,685
392 400
- 1,862
- 18
3,014 (3,064)
475 (174)
(1,973) 4,095
(790) 1,622
18,006 $ 9,196

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

23




Materials Innovation and Recycling Buthority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2014 AND 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Entity and Services
The Materials Innovation and Recycling

Authority (the “Authority”) was created by the
State of Connecticut (the “State™) under Public

Act 14-94 (the “Act”). The Authority
constitutes a successor authority to the
Connccticut  Resources  Recovery  Authority

(CRRA)} which was created in 1973 under
Chapter 446e of the State Statutes. The
Authority is a public instrumentality and
political subdivision of the State and is included
as a component unit in the State’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The Authority became CRRA’s successor
cffective June 6, 2014 when 1t assumed control
over all of CRRA’s assets, rights, duties and
obligations and continuecd CRRA’s ongoing
business. The Act and relaled statutes outlined
below specified the transfer of responsibilitics
from CRRA to the Authority in a manner that
assured continuity.

» The Authority’s designation as CRRA’s
successor did not represent a grant of new
authority by the State. The Authority
replaced CRRA and CRRA no longer exists;

s Any cffective orders or
CRRA remain  effective
governance of the Authority;

under  the

¢ To the extent that CRRA was a party to any
action or proceeding (civil or criminal), the
Authority was substituted for CRRA in that
action or proceeding;

¢ Any confract, right of action or matter
undertaken or commenced by CRRA 1s now
being undertaken and completed by the
Authority;

regulations  of

24

o The officers and employees of CRRA have
been transferred o the Authority; and

o All property of CRRA has been delivered to
the Authority.

Considering the nature and scope of the
Authority’s designation as CRRA’s successor,
the Authority's financial statements reflect all
operating and non-operating revenues and
expenses for the period ending June 30, 2014,
and all asscts, iiabilities and the net position of
the Authority as of June 30, 2014, including all
financial activities of CRRA during this period.

The Authority is authorized to have a board
consisting of eleven directors and cight ad-hoc
members. The Governor appomts three directors
and all cight ad-hoc members. The remaining
cight directors are appointed by various state
legislative leaders. All appointments require the
advice and consent of both houses of the
General Assembly. The Act made no changes to
the composition of, or appointments to, the
Authority’s current Board of Directors.

The State Treasurer continucs to approve the
issuance of all Authority bonds and notes. The
State is contingently liable to restore
deficiencies in debt service reserves established
for certain Authority bonds. The Authority has
no taxing power.

Under the Act, the Authority’s purpose
continues  to  be the planning, design,
construction, financing, management,

ownership, operation and maintenance of solid
wasic disposal, volume reduction, recycling,
intermediate processing, resource recovery and
related support facilities necessary to carry out
the State’s Solid Waste Management Plan. The
Authority continues 1o provide solid waste
management services to municipalities, regions
and persons within the state by receiving solid

wastes  at  Authority  facilitics, recovering




resources from such solid wastes, and
generating revenues from such scrvices
sufficient for the Authority to operate on a self-
sustaining basis.

The Act established a new consultative
partnership between the Authority and the
State’s Department of  Energy and
Environmental Protection (DEFP) specifically
for redevclopment of the  Authority’s
Connecticut  Solid Waste System  (CSWS)
described below, and generally for the
development of mnew waste management
industrics, technologies and  commercial
enterprises on property owned by the Authority.
The Act charged DEEP with revising the State’s
solid waste management plan and undertaking
these consultative efforts consistent with the
revised plan. The Act also transferred
responsibility for statewide recycling education
to a newly crecated “Recycle CT Foundation”.
The Authority continues (o provide educational
facilities and scrvices to its customers as of June
130, 2014.

CRRA’s original core mission was to develop a
network  of resource recovery and related
facilities within the State to move the State
away from the process of landfilling its
municipal  solid  waste. Facilities were
constructed in Hartford, Preston, Bridgeport and
Wallingford,  Connecticut,  which  have
historically been known as the Mid Connecticut,
Southeast, Bridgeport and Wallingford projects
respectively. CRRA secured financing, facility
devcloper, opcrator and customer contracts, and
administered these projects throughout their
various stages over the Jast four decades. While
the initial underlying contracts for the Southeast
Project remain in cifcct, those for Mid
Connecticut, Bridgeport and Wallingford have
expired resulling in a distribution and/or
reformation of project asscts which formed the
foundation for CRRA’s core project / division
and financial structurce at the time of assumption
by the Authority. The Authority continues to
recognize CRRA’s project / division and
financial structure outlined below,

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
& Component Unit of the State of Connecticul

Mid Connecticut Project - CRRA retained title
to the resource recovery facility in Hartford
(South Meadows), all support facilities and land
when the initial underlying project contracts
expired. No property transferred to the facility
operator. CRRA assigned these assets to its
Property Division and put them into service in
the form of the Connecticut Solid Waste System
(CSWS). Assets in service to the CSWS include
the resource recovery facility, four transfer
stations and a major recycling facility. The
CSWS presently provides solid waste disposal
services to 51 municipalities in the State and is
the primary operating division of the Authority.
All operating revenues and expenses of the
CSWS, other than depreciation and amortization
of asscls, are assigned to the CSWS division.
Mid Connecticut Project assets not in service to
the CSWS include the Education and ‘I'rash
Museum and certain jet turbine powered clectric
generating peaking units.  All revenucs and
expenses associated with the assets not in
service to CSWS are assigned to the Property
Division. The Mid Comnecticut Project remains
active admunistratively for project close out
activity including closure of the Hartford
landfill and funds distribution.

Southeast Project

The initial underlving structure of this project
remains in place. CRRA issucd its Resource
Recovery Revenue Bonds, and subsequently
Refunding Bonds, (the “Bonds™), to finance
construction of this resource recovery facility
located in Preston and the supporting Special
Capital Reserve Fund held by the State
Treasurer. CRRA owned the facility and leased
it to a private operator. The private operator
runs the facility pursuant to a Service
Agreement with CRRA, under which the CRRA
is obligated to meet certain solid waste delivery
requirements. To meet these requirements, the
Southecastern Connecticut Regional Resource
Recovery Authority (SCRRRA) was established
and SCRRRA entered into agreements with its
twelve member municipalities requiring them to
deliver waste to SCRRRA for disposal at the
facility.  Under @ Bridge and Management
Agreement between CRRA and SCRRRA, the
Authority causes the facility to be operated and




maintained and SCRRRA causes its members to
deliver waste. Based on this structure, CRRA’s
Balance Sheet has not included the Capital
Assets comprising the facility as they will revert
to operator ownership upon expiration of the
underlying documents. Likewise, the Balance
Sheet does not reflect the Current or Long Term
].iabilities associated with these Capital Assets
(debt service on the Bonds) which is secured
solely by the pledge of revenue derived from the
facility. CRRA’s responsibility, among other
things, has been to manage the flow of funds
under the Bond Indenture.  Accordingly, the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position includes revenues and funds
distribulcd by the Authority pursuant to the
Indenture. The Authority has assumed CRRA’s
interests and obligations under the Bonds, lease,
Service Agreement, Bridge and Management
Agreement and reports this activity consistent
with the structure noted above.

Bridgeport Project — CRRA retained title to
the land and a major recycling facility Jocated in
Stratford upon expiration of initial project
underlying contracts. It transferred title to the
resource recovery facility to the operator, but
retained rights to a portion of the facility’s
waste processing capacity through Junc 30,
2014. CRRA leased the land to the operator and
used its retained facility capacity to serve the
waste processing needs of twelve towns in the
Southwest area of the State. The processing of
waste through this retained facility capacity is
reflected in CRRA’s “Southwest Division”
which was formed for this purpose but ceased
operations on Junc 30, 2014. Revenue from the
facility lease was assigned to the Property
Division. The Authority has assumed CRRA’s
interests and obligations in these assets and
reports this activity consistent with the structure
noted above.

Wallingford Project — Title to the resource
recovery facility and underlying land was
transferred to the operator.  While no fixed
asscts were retained by CRRA, the Authority
has assumed CRRA’s interests and obligations
with respect to certain ongoing project close out
and asset transfer activities.

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Property Division — All Capital Assets retained
by CRRA upon expiration of the Mid
Connecticut and Bridgeport projects other than
those associated with landfills arc assigned to
this division. The division derives net income
primarily from the lease of property and sale of
jet turbine electric generating capacity in
various 1SO New England energy markets,
The Authority has assumed CRRA’s interests
and obligations in the Property Division and
reports this activity consistent with the structure
noted above.

‘Landfill Division - As of June 6, 2014 the .

Authority assumed CRRA’s ownership interests
in three closed landfills in the State, and certain
adjoining properties, assigned w the Landfill
Division. Certain  plant and  equipment
installations associated with these landfills, and
the leased Hartford landfill, are also assigned 10
this division. The Authority has also assumed
CRRA’s interests and obligations pursuant to
State statute and agreement  with  DELP
concerning the transfer of CRRA’s landfill post
closure care obligations to DEEP and the
transfer of funds reserved lor post close care
activities to the State. See Notc 4 for additional
mformation.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting,
and Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Authority have
becn prepared in conformity with accounting
principles gencrally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”) as applied to
government  entitics.  The  Governmental
Accounting Standards Board ("GASB7} is the
accepted standard-setting hody for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles.

The Authority is considered to be an Linterprise
Fund. The Authority’s activities are accounted
for using a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabihities, net
position, revernues, and expenses.

Enterprise funds are established to account for
operations that are financed and operated n a




manner similar to private business enterprises,
where the intent is that the costs of providing
goods or services on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

The Authority’s financial statements are
prepared using an economic  resources
mecasurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when
camned and expenses arc recognized when
incurred. Interest on revenue bonds, used lo
finance the construction of certain assct, is
capitalized during the construction period, net of
interest earned on the investment of unexpended
bond proceeds.

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues
and expenses from non-operaling items.
Operating revenues and expenscs  generally
result from providing services in connection
with the disposal of solid wasle. The principal
operating revenucs of the Authority are charges
to customers for user services and sales of
cleetricity. Operaling expenscs include the cost
of solid wastc operations, maintenancc and
utilities, closure and post-closure care of
Jandfills, administrative expenses, distribution
to member towns and/or other, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

C. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAYP requires management o
make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the balance sheets and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting  period.  Such  cstimates  are
subsequently revised as deemed necessary when
additional information becomes avatlable.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

All unrestricted and restricted highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or

Materials Innovation and Recycling RButhority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticnt

less when purchased are considered to be cash
equivalents.

E. Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable are shown net of an
allowance for the estimated portion that is not
expected 1o be collected. The Authorty
performs  ongoing  credit  evaluations  and
generally requires a guarantee of payment form
of collateral from non-municipalities. The
Authority has established an allowance for the
estimated portion that is not expected to be
collected of $254,000 at June 30, 2014 and
$632,000 at June 30, 2013.

F. Inventory

The Authority’s spare parts inventory is stated
at the lower of cost or market using the
weighted-average cost method. The Authority’s
fuel inventory is stated at the lower of cost or
market using the FIFO method. Inventories at
Junc 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as
follows:

Fiscal Year

Inventones 2014 2013
(000) (3000)
Spare Parts $ 4,687 k3 5,323
Fuel 1,382 1,221
Total $ 6,069 5 6,544

G. Investments

Investiments are stated at fair value. Gamns or
losses on sales of investments are determined
using the specific identification method.

Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in
the year the interest is earned, unless capitalized
as an offsel to capitalized nterest expense on
assets acquired with tax-exempt debt.

H. Restricted Positions
Under provisions of various bond indentures

and certain other agreements, restricied assets
arc used for debt service, special capital reserve




funds and other debt service reserve funds,
development, construction and operating costs.

1. Development Costs

Costs incurred during the development stage of
an Authority project, including, but not limited
{o, initial planning and permitting. When the
project begins commercial operation, the
development costs are amortized using the
straight-linc method over the estimated life of
the project.

Development costs for ﬁséal 2014 and 2013 are
presented in the following table:

Seutheast
Development Costs Fiscal Year
2014 2013
{5000) ($5000)
Development Costs $ 10,006 10,006
Less accummulated
amortization 9,222 8,829
Votal development
costs, net $ 784 § 1,177

A summary of fulure amortization for
developruent is as follows:

Fiscal year endmg Southeast

June 30, ($000)
2015 392
2016 392

Total $ 784

J.  Capital Assets

Capital assets with a uscful life in excess of one
year are capitalized at  Thistorical cost.
Depreciation of exhaustible capital assets is
charged as an cxpense against operations.
Depreciation has been provided over the
estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives of landfills
are bascd on the cstimated years of available
disposal capacity. The estimated useful lives of
other capital assets are as follows:

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Capital Assets Years
Resources Recovery Buildings 30
Other Buildings 20
Resources Recovery Equipment 30
Gas and Steam Turbines 10-20
Recycling Fquipment 10
Rolling Stock and Automobiles S
Office and Other Equipment 3-5
Roadways 20

The Authority’s capitalizalion threshold for
property, plant, and equipment and for office
furniture and equipment is $5,000 and $1,000,
respectively.  Improvements, renewals, and
significant repairs that extend the uscful life of a
capital asset are capitalized; other repairs and
maintenance costs arc expensed as incurred.
When capital assets are retired or otherwisc
disposed of, the related asset and accumulated
depreciation is written off and any related gains
or losses are recorded.

The Authority reviews its long-lived assets used
in operations for bmpairment when there 1s an
event or change in circumstances that indicates
impairment in value. The Authority records
impairment losses and reduces the carrying
value of properties when indicators  of
impairment are present and the expected
undiscounted cash flows related to those
properties are less than their carrying amounts.
In cases where the Authority does not expect to
rccover its carrying costs on propertics held for
use, the Authority reduces its carrying cost to
{air value, and for properties held for sale, the
Authority reduccs its carrying value to the fair
value less costs to sell. During the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, no impairment
losses were recognized. Management does not
believe that the value of its properties 1s
impaired as of June 30, 2014.




K. Compensated Absences
The Authority’s Lability for vested accumulated

unpaid vacation and personal amounts is
included in accrued expenses and other current

Balance at

Materials Innovation and Recycling Buthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticat

liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.
Compensated absences for fiscal 2013 and 2014
are presented in the following table:

Balance at Balance at

July 1 June 30, June 30,
Compensated Absences 2012 Increases  Decreases 2013 Incrcases Decreases 2014
{3000} {3000y (5000} {3600) {3000) (30003 {3000
Accrued vacation and persenattime  § 475§ ML 3 288§ 32§ 4§ - 3§ 369
Total 3 475§ 141§ 288 3% P8 05 41 3 - 8 369

L. Net Position

The Authority’s net position is stated in the
three components including invested in capital
asscts, restricted net position and unrestricted
net position.

Invested in capital asscts, net of related debt,
consists of capital assets, pet_of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of bonds that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restrictions of net posiion are lmmited to
outside third party restrictions and represent the
net position that has becn legally identified for
specific purposes. Restricted net position totaled
$548.000 and $5.0 million as of June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Authority has
no net position that is restricted by enabling
iegaslation.

29

Unrestricted net position may be divided into
designated  and  undesignated  portions.
Designated net  position  represent  the
Authority’s self-imposed limitations on the use
of otherwise unrestricted net  position.
Unrestricted net position has been designated by
the Board of Directors of thc Authority for
various purposes. Such designations totaled
$25.7 million and $22.3 million as of June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Unrestricted net
position at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are
summarized as follows:




Unrestricted Net Position 2014 2013
($000) ($000)
Undesignated $ 35,007 $ 26019
Designated:
Capital Expenditures - 3,130
Debt service stabilization 175 -
Enron litigation expense 394 438
Future loss contingencies 6,663 8,647
General 4,534 -
himprovements 5343 -
Land{ill development 296 296
Legal 508 -
1atigation reserve 790 3,135
Non-GA SB #18 post-closuie 1,783 4,115
Posi-project closure 144 179
Froject-closure 1,633 432
Recyelng 190 189
Severances 874 -
Tip fee stablization 2,408 -
Transition costs P 1,750
25,135 2,312
‘Tutal Unrestiicted Net Position $ 60,742 . § 48331

M. New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective June 1, 2013, the Authority adopted
the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65,
Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities (GASB 65). As a result of adopting
GASB 65, the Authority now presents resources
that do not meet the availability criterion as
deferred inflows of resources.

Effective June 1, 2013, the Authority adopted
the provisions of GASB Statement No. 66,
Technical Corrections (GASB No. 66). This
statement establishes clarifications on two
recently issued statements, statement No. 54,
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions, and statement No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting  Guidance  Contained in  Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. This statement resolves
conflicting guidance created as a result of the
issuance of these two statements.

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
E Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

The Authority fally adopted GASB statements
No.65 and 66 as of July 1,2013 and there was no
significant impact to the financial statements.

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the
following as of June 30, 2014 and 2013:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2014 2013
{$000) (3000)
Unrestricted:
Cash deposits 5 8935 $ 3342
Cash cquivalents:
STIF * ' 49892 34,217
58,827 87,559
Restricted -- current:
Cash deposits 1,788 630
Cash cquivalents:
STIF * 584 6,075
Money Market
Funds 322 -
2,694 6,705

Restricted - non-current:
Cash equivalents:
U.S. Treasuries - 8,184
- 8,184

Total $ 61521 $102.448

* STIF = Short-Tenn Investeent Fund of the State of Connccticut

A. Cash Deposits — Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit nisk is the risk that, in the cvent
of a bank failure, the Authority will not be able
to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority’s
investment policy docs not have a deposit policy
for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, approximatcly
$9.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively, of
the Authonity’s bank balance of cash deposits
were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:




Custodial Credit Risks 2014 2013
(8000) ($000)

Uninsured and Uncollaterabized $ 8495 $1.888

Uninsured but collateralized

with securities held by the

pledging bank’s trust

department or agent but not in

the Authority’s name 1,427 350

Total $ 9922 $2 238

All of the Authority’s deposits were in qualified
public institutions as defined by State statute.
Under this statute, any bank holding public
deposits must at all times maintain, segregated
from other assets, cligible collateral in an
amount equal to a certain percentage of its
public deposits. The applicable percentage is
determined based on the bank’s risk-based
capital ratio. The amount of public deposits is
determined based on either the public deposits
reported on the most recent quarterly call report,
or the average of the public deposits reported on
the four most recent quarterly call reports,
whichever is greater. The collateral is kept in
the custody of the trust department of either the
pledging bank or another bank in the name of
the pledging bank.

Investments in the Short-Term Investment Fund
(“STIF™), U.S. Trecasuries, and Money Market
Funds as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are
included in cash and cash equivalents in the
accompanying balance sheet. For purposes of
disclosure under GASB Statement No. 40, such
amounts are considered investments and are

included in thc investment disclosures that
follow.

B. Iavestients

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2014, the Authonty’s

investments consisted of the following debt
securities:

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
1 Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Investment Maturities

{In Years)
Investment Far Less More
Tyie Value than Fio 6to  than
(3000} 1 5 10 10
STIF $ 50476 $ 50476 3 - § - 3%

Total $ 50476 $5047€ § - §5 - %

As of June 30, 2013, the Authority’s
investments consisted of the following debt
securities:

Investment Matwitics
{In Years)

Tinvestment Fan Less More

Type Vahe than Yis  Gto  than
($000) 1 5 10 19

ST $ 90292 590292 % - § - 5 -

US Ticaswies 5,184 8184 - -

Total $ 98476 $ 98476 S - 5 - 5 -

STIF is an investment pool of short-lerm money
market instruments that may include adjustable-
rate federal agency and foreign government
securitics whosc interest rates vary directly with
short-term  money market indices and are
generally reset daily, monthly, quarterly, and
semi-annually.  The adjustable-rate securines
have similar exposures to credit and legal risks
as fixed-rate securitics from the same issuers.
The fair value of the position in the pool is the
sanic as the value of the pool shares. As of Junc
30, 2014 and 2013, STIF had a weighted
average maturity of 40 days and 45 days;
respectively.  The U.S. Treasury Securities arc
U.S. Treasury Bills that had 90-day maturities as
of June 30, 2013. The Money Market Funds
invest exclusively in short-term U.S. Treasury
obligations and repurchasc agreements securcd
by U.S. Treasury obligations.  This fund
complies with  Seccuritics and Ixchange
Commission  regulations regarding  money
markel fund maturities, which requires that the
weighted average maturity be 90 days or lcss.
As of June 30, 2014, the weighted average
maturity of this fund was 40 days.

The Authority’s investment policy does not
limit investment maturities as a mecans of




managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates. The
Authority is limited to investment maturities as
required by specific bond resolutions or as
needed for immediate use or disbursement.
Those funds not included in the foregoing may
be invested in longer-term securities as
authorized in the Authority’s investment policy.
The primary objectives of the Authority’s
investment policy are the preservation of
principal and the maintenance of liquidity.

Credit Risk

The Authority’s investment policy delineates the
investment of funds in securities as authorized
and defined within the bond resolutions
governing the Scutheast Projects for those funds
established under the bond resolution and held
in trust by the Authority’s trustee. For all other
funds, Connecticul state statutes permit the
Authority to invest in obligations of the United

States, including its instrumentalitics and
agencies; in obligations of any state or of any
political subdivision, authority or agency

thereof, provided such obligations are rated

within one of the lop two rating categories of

any recognized rating service; or in obligations
of the State of Connecticut or of any political
subdivision thereof, provided such obligations
are rated within one of the top three rating
categories of any recognized rating service.

As of Junc 30, 2014, the Authorily’s
investments, other than U.S. Treasurics, were
rated as follows:

Fair Moody's
Security Value  Standard  Investor Fitch
(8000) & Pow’s  Service  Ratines
Not Naot
STIF $ 0476 AAAm Rated Rated
Money Market Funds & 322 AAAm  Aaa-mf AAAmm{
As of June 30, 2013, the Authority’s

investments, other than U.S. Treasuries, were

rated as follows:

L

ro

Materials Innovation and Recycling Buthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Faw Moody's
Secunty Vale  Standard Investor Fitch
(S0U01 & Poor's Servie  Ratmgs
Not Nat
STIF $ 90292 AAAm Rated Rated

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the
risk that, in the cvent of the failure of the
counterparty, the Authority will not be able (o
recover the value of its investments or collateral
securitics that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Authority’s investment policy does
not include provisions for custodial credit risk,
as the Authority does not invest in securitics that
are held by counterparties.  In accordance with
GASB  Statement No. 40, none of the
Authorily’s investments require custodial credit
risk disclosures. The STIF is not subject to
regulatory oversight nor is it registered with the
Sccurities and Exchange Commission as an
mvestment company.

Concentration of Credit Risk

‘The Authority’s investment policy places no
limit on the amount of investment in any one
issuer, but does requirc diversity of the
investment portfolio if investments are made in
non-U.S. government or U.S. agency securities
to climinate the risk of Joss of over-
concentration of asscts in a specific class of
security, a specitic maturity and/or a specific
issuer.  The asset allocation of the investment
portfolio should, however, be fiexible enough to
assure adequate liquidity tor Authorily needs.
As of Junc 30, 2014 and 2013, approximately
100% and 91.7%, respectively, of the
Authority’s investments are in the STIF, which
is rated in the highest rating catcgory by
Standard & Poor’s and provides daily hiquidity,
thereby satisfying the primary objectives of the
Authority’s investinent policy.




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticnt

3. CAPITAL ASSETS
The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2014:
Balance af Salesand  Balance at Salesand  Balmnee

June30, 2010 Adfiions  Tramsfers  Disposals  June30, 2013 AddiGons  Translers  Disposals  June 30,2014
(5000) ($000) (3600) ($000) (8000} (S000) (3000) (5000} (3000

Depreciable assels:
Pl AL/ A S | S A S A ) I O N ) S S VA T 1E S S A
Equpment M 348 1608 ooy B KYR XY {L034) M
Total cod 2670 3405 HATY e 43030 13 63n {265 a8
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plnt (154842 {6323} % 34 (1574960 [(6.460) . 135 (182631}
Equipment (180,597 {8 450) : B puy ¢ S {196,625}
Tolal woumbteddeprcision (33989 (14509) 15 434 (00 (509 - 143 (359.56)
Total depreciable assets,net — § 8360 8 (0% 5 g0 § {00 5 M (13,5"2} SO @) 5 e
Nondepreciable assets: :
Land S T ST 3 -8 o uW
Consclion-in-progess 398 $65 (1T . 20 1649 (10383 . 126
Total nondepreciable sssets ~ § M2 § 825§ (HMY S S T A D 17 R {1 Kl
Total depreciable and
nondepreciable assels S T S 4 T SO 1/ SO 1/ 13 O (74 R S N T ) R S 1 14




Interest is capitalized on asscts acquired with
debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is
calculated by offseting interest expense
incurred from the date of borrowing until
completion of the projects with interest earned
on invested debt procecds over the same period.
During fiscal years 2014 and 2013, there was no
capitalized interest as there was no new external
borrowing.

4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE
CARE OF LANDFILLS

Federal, State and local regulations require the
Authority lo place final cover on its landfills
when il stops accepting waste (including ash)
and to perform cerfain maintenance and
monitoring functions for periods that may
extend to thirty years after closure.

GASB  Statement No. 18 "Accounting for
Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Post-Closure Care Costs," applies to closure and
_post-closure care costs that are paid near or after
the date a landfill stops accepting wasle. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 18, the
Authority estimates its lability for these closure
and post-closure carc costs and records any
increases or decreases to the liability as an
operating expense. For landfills presently open,
such estimate is based on landfill capacity used
as of the balancc sheet date. The liability for
these costs 18 reduced when the costs are
actually paid, which is generally after the
landfill is closed. Actual costs may be higher
duc to inflation or changes in permitted
capacity, technology or rcgulation. At June 30,
2013, all five of the landfills had no capacity
available since 100% of their capacity had been
used. Accordingly, there arc no remaining costs
to be recognized in the future as closure and
post-closure care costs of the landfills.

The Connecticut Department of Encrgy and
Environmental Protection (“DEEP™) requires
that certain financial assurance mechanisms be
maintained by the Authonty to ensure payment

of closure and post-closure costs rclated to
certain

34

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

landfills. Additionally, DEEP requires that the
Authority include closure costs for the Hartford
.andfill in its applicable fiscal year budget.

The Authority has placed  funds i reserve
accounts for the Hartford, Ellington, Waterbury,
and Wallingford Landfills for financial
assurance purposes. These reserve accounts are
reflected as cash and equivalents i the
accompanying balance shect as of Junc 30,
2013.

In addition, the Authority established Post-
Closure Trust Funds as [inancial assurance
mechanisms for the Shelton Landill and the
Wallingford Landfill.  These trust funds are
reflected as  restricted  investments 1 the
accompanying balance sheet as of Junc 30,
2013.

During FY 2014, pursuant to applicable State
statutc as described further under Note 11, the
Authonity transferred its post closure care
obligations for all of its landfills to DEEP and
concurrently transferred $31 million of the
landfill reserve accounts and trust funds
described above to the State’s General Fund.
The Authority’s closure obligation for the
Hartford  landfill  was not  transferred.
Accordinglyf, the accompanying balance sheet as
of June 30, 2014 no longer recognizes liabilitics
associated with the post closure care of the
Authority’s landfills but continues (o recognize
the Iartford Landfill closure obligation. the
nature and status of these statutes and their
implementation are described fully under Note

I1. Their effect on Authonty’s FY 2014
Financial Statements are as follows:
. $7.5 million in funds held 1n trust by US

Bank as financial assurance mechanisms for the
Shelton Landfill and the Wallingford Landfil},
and reflected as restricted imvestinents as of
June 30, 2013, have been liquidated and used by
the Authority to satisfy its transfer obhgation to
the State’s General FFund;

. $23.5 million in funds held m reserve
accounts for the Hartford, Ilington, Waterbury,
and Wallingford Landfills, and reflected as cash




and equivalents as of June 30, 2013, have been
liquidated and used by the Authority to satisfy
its transfer obligation to the State;

. Landfill  trust funds and reserve
accounts not used to satisfy the Authorily’s
transfer obligation 1o the State are no longcer
restricted and are being used to advance fund
ongoing landfill work that is being reimbursed
by DEEP during a transition period, to fund
maintenance activity at the Hartford landfill
pending completion of the Closure Certification
Report and assumption of post closure
obligations by DEEP, and to pay necessary
OngoINg Nsurance coverage,;

. $35.8 million in long term liabilitics of
the Authority for the post closure care of its
landfills as of the cffective date of transfer to
DEEP have been removed from the Authority’s
Financial Statements;

. $4.8 million in non-operating revenue
has been recognized in the Authority’s Landfill
Division. This non-operating revenue reflects
the difference between funds transferred by the
Authority and the GASB 18 liabilities assumed
by the State;

Materials Innovation and Recycling Buthority
& Component Unit of the State of Comnecticut

. An inter-fund loan from the Authority’s
Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve to the
Authority’s Connecticut Solid Waste System
(CSWS), representing start up working capital
for CSWS, has been written off the Authority’s
Financial Statements as there is no ongoing necd
for this post closure reserve.  This $7.9 nullion
transaction is now reflected as a contnbution
from the Landfill Division to CSWS rather than
a CSWS liability due to other funds as presented
in the Authority’s Financial Statements as of
June 30, 2013.

transferred

‘There were no capital assets

pursuant to these statutes.

The closure and post-closure care liabilities
including the amounts paid and accrued for
fiscal 2013 and 2014 for the landfills, are
presented in the following table:

Liability Liability Lighiily  Amounis
at al at Due

June 30, June 30, hune 30, Within
Landfil 2012 Expense Paid 2013 Expense Paid Transfers 2004 One Year

{3000) (3000} {3000} ($600) {3000} (30003 ($000) ($000) (3000

Ellington $ 3614 § (i6d) § (IS0 § 3300 $ - ¢ asn 8 (33§ - % -
Hartford 28,618 3,195 {1,205) 30,608 (3.392) {9.392) (177181 43 43
Shelon 10,906 (528) (251) 10,128 - (350) (9,778) - -
Wallingtord 5,111 {660} {153} 4298 - (1373 {4,161} - -
Waterbury 951 19 127 942 - {25) 9N - -
Total $ 49200 § 1862  §(1786) § 4927 $(3392)  $J0091F S (35750 % 43 8 43




During the year ended June 30, 2014, the
Authority revised its estimates for closure
expenses to be incurred at the Hartford landfill.
Previously accrued closure costs were reduced
by approximately $3.4 million.

5. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Energy sales 1o 1SO New England through our
lcad market participant Nextera Energy Power
Marketing and Northeast Utilitics totaled 29%
and 16.80%; respectively, of the Authority’s
operating revenues for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014. Fnergy sales to Northeast
Utilities and Constellation totaled 16.31% and
12.19%; respectively, of the Authority’s
cperating revenues for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013.

Service charge revenues from All Waste, Inc.
tolaled 6.28% and 7.00% of the Authority’s
operating revenues for fiscal years ended June
30, 2014 and 2013; respectively.

6. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Authority is the Administrator of its 401(k)
Employee  Savings  Plan.  This  defined
contribution retirement plan covers all eligible
employecs.

Under the Amended and Restated 401(k)
Employee Savings Plan, effective July 1, 2000,
Authority contributions arc five percent of
payroll plus a dollar for dollar match of
employees’ contributions up to five percent of
employee wages. Authority contributions lor the
years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted
o $392,000 and $410,000, respectively.
Limployees contributed $390,000 to the plan n
fiscal year 2014 and $406,000 in fiscal year
2013. A scparate report is not available to non-
participants.

In addition, the Authority is a participating
employer in the State of Connecticut’s defined
contribution  457(b)  Plan, which allows
Authority employees to participale in the State
of Connecticut’s deferred compensation plan
created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code  Section 457, All amounts  of

6

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Compenent Unit of the State of Connecticut

compensation deferred under the 457(b) plan,
all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those
amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for
the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and
their beneficiaries. The Authority holds no
fiduciary responsibility for the plan; rather,
fiduciary responsibility rests with the Slate
Comptroiler’s office.

The Authority has no post-cmployment benefit
plans as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authorily is exposed to various risks of
loss. The Authonty endeavors to purchasc
commercial insurance for all insurable risks of
loss that can he done so at reasonable expense.
Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial coverage in any of the past three (3)
fiscal years. The overall limit applics on a
blanket basis, per occurrence, for property
damage to all scheduled locations and
provides coverage for business interruption
and extra expense for the South Mcadows
facilities. The South Meadows waste-to-energy
facility is the Auwthority’s highest valued single
facility.

The Authority is a member of the Connecticut
Interlocal  Risk  Management  Agency’s
(“CIRMA™ Workers’ Compensation Pool, a
risk sharing pool, which was begun on fuly 1,
1980. The Workers® Compensation Pool
provides statutory benefits pursuant to the
provisions of the Connecticut  Workers
Compensation  Act.  The coverage is 2
guaranteed cost program. The premium for each
of the policy periods from July 1, 2014 through
July 1, 2015 and July 1, 2013 through July 1,
2014 was $66,000 and $63,000, respectively.

8. COMMITMENTS

The Authority has varicus operating lcascs for
office space and oftfice equipment, which totaled
$294,000 and $352,000 for [scal years 2014
and 2013, respectively. '




The Authority also has agreements with various
municipalities for payments in lieu of taxcs
(“PILOT”) for personal and real property. For
the ycars ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
, the PILOT payments, which are included m the
solid waste operations in the accompanying
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position, . totaled $ 3,304,000 and
$3,708,000, respectively. The City of Hartford
PILOT agreement for the CSWS was cffective
as of November 27, 2013. Future minimum
rental  commitments under non-cancelable
operating leases and futurc PILOT payments as
of June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Lease PILOY
Fiscal Year = Amount Amount

($000) (5000)
2015 396 2,544
2016 207 1,088
2017 17 1,133
2018 15 35
2019 15 35
Thereafter 120 280
Total $ 770 $ 5,115

.

‘The Authority has executed contracts with the
operators/contractors of the resources recovery
facilities, regional recycling centers, transfer
stations, and landfills containing various terms
and conditions expiring through November
2015. Generally, operating charges are derived
from various factors such as tonnage processed,
energy produced, and certain  pass-through
operating costs.

The approximate amount of contract operating
charges, including transition costs incurred in
connection with a new Operations and
Management Agreements effective in 2012 (O
& M Agreements™) to operate the South
Meadows waste energy facility | included 1in
solid waste operations and maintcnance and
utilities expense for the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013 was as follows:

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Project 2014
(8000)
Connecticut Solid $ 46,208
Wastc System
Mid-Connecticut (793)
Southeast 20,349
SouthWest 12,907
Property 1,054
Landfill 750
Recycling -
Wallingford -
Total $ 80475

There arc no construction contracts executed
during fiscal year 2014.

9. OTHER FINANCING

The Authority served as a conduit issuer for
scveral bonds pursuant to bond resolutions lo
fund the construction of waste processing
facilities built and operated by independent
contractors. ' 'The only bonds that remain
outstanding relate to the Authority’s Southcast
project. The revenue bonds were issued by the
Authority to lower the cost of borrowing for the
contractor/operator  of the projects. The
Authority was not involved in the construction
activitics, and construction requisitions by the
contractor were made from various trustee

accounts. See mnote 1A for additional
information on the structure of Southeast
project.

The Authorily is not obligated for the repayment
of debt on these issues other than the revenues
of Southeast project. In the event of default, and
except in cases where the State has a contingent
liability, the payment of debt is not guaranteed
by the Authority or the State. Therefore, the
Authority does not record the assels and
liabilities related to these bond issucs on its
financial statements. The principal amounts of




these bond issues outstanding at Junc 30, 2014
are as follows:

Project Amount
($000)
Southeast -
1992 Series A - Corp. Credit $ 30,000
2001 Series A - Covanta
Southeastern Conmecticut
Company - | 6,750
200! Series A - Covanla
Southeastern Connecticut
Company - II 6,750
2010 Series A - Project Refunding 11,295
Total $ 54,795

11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

During FY 2014, The Authority implemented
certain actions mandated by the Statc of
Connecticut in its Public Act 13-247 and
Section 99 of Public Act 13-184. These acts
required the Authority to transfer all legally
required obligations resulting from the closure
of the Authority’s landfills located i Hartford,
Ellington, Waterbury, Wallingtord and Shelton
to the State’s Department of knergy and
Environmental  Protection (DEEP), and to
transfer up to $35 million of thc Authority’s
resources to the State, to be credited to the
resources of the State’s General Fund, for the
fiscal year ending June, 30, 2014.  'The
Authority’s closure obligations for the Hartford
Landfill were not transferred.

“The transfer of legal obligations resulting from
the closure of landfills was addressed by a
Memorandum of Understanding  (*MOU”)
between the Authority and DELIP. The MOU
became effective April 24, 2014 at which point
m time DEEP began reimbursing the Authority
for all post closure care and maintenance work
at all landfills other than Hartford and the
parlies began a lransilion process o assign
vendor contracts for the performance of landfill
post closurc care work to DEEP and to assign
federal and state licenses, permits and orders

L)

Materials Innovatien and Recycling Ruthority
E Component Unit of the State of Connecticnt

{“Authorizations™) related to the landfills to
DEEP. As of June 30, 2014, the Authonity
continues to perform landfill post closure work
at these four landfills subject to reimbursement
by DEEP pending assignment of vendor
contracts, and by August 7, 2014 all solid waste
Authorizations concerning the landfills had been
transferred to DEEP. As of June 30, 2014 the
Hartford landfill has not been certified as closed
and the Authority has not entercd the post-
closure care period for this landfill. DEEP will
assume the obligation to reimburse the
Authority for all post-closure care work for
Tartford as of the date the Authority completes
its landfill closure work and submits its Closure
Certification Report to DEEP. The transition of
any vendor contracts and Authorizations
concerning the Hartford landfill will begin as of
the date DIEEP certifies the Hartford landfill as
closed. While the Aathority is no longer
responsible for the post-closure care of s
landfills, the Public Act and related MOU did
not result 1n the transfer of any real properly or
infrastructure constituting Capital Assets of the
Authority’s Landfill Diviston.

The transfer of up to $35 million of the
Authority’s resources to the Stale as required by
Public Act 13-184 was addressed by resclution
of the Authority’s Board of Directors.  'The
Authority received written conf{inmation {rom
the State that the transfer of $31 million will
fully satisfy the requirements of Public Act 13-
184 and the Board directed the transfer of $31
million in stages based on the occurrence of
certain relevant milestones that included 1)
cxecution of the MOU, 1) issuance of a
purchase order providing for reimbursement of

the Authority’s ongoing work during the
transition period, i) transfer of cerlain

Authorizations, 1v) termination of certain trust
agreements, and v) action required by certain’
local government policy boards. As of June 30,
2014, all of these milestones have been achieved
and the Authority has transferred $31 million to
the State.

The implementation of Public Acts 13-247 and
13-184 is reflected on the Authority’s Financial
Statements as of June 30, 2014 as a hiquidation
of $31 million n tust and reserve funds




previously held as financial assurance for post
closure care obligations, a write off of long term
lLiabilities associated with such post closure carc
obligations, and recognition of non-operating
revenue representing the difference between
such funds and liabilitics. See Note 4 for
additional information.

12. CONTINGENCIES

Mid-Connecticut Project

On QOctober 7, 2009, The Metropolitan District
Commission (“MDC™) mitiated an arbitration
proceeding against the Authority secking a
declaratory judgment that the Authority is
responsible  for  ccrtain post-employment
benefits and other costs that MDC may incur
following the expiration of its contract for the
operation of a portion of the Mid-Connecticut
Project on December 30, 2011. The MDC did
not specify the amount of its monelary claim in
its demand for a declaratory judgment m
arbitration; however, the MDC subsequently
asserted an amended demand for arbitration
based on similar underlying legal arguments and
asserting a claim for unspecified damages. On
February 26, 2013, MDC also filed an
application for a prejudgment remedy (the “PIR
Application™), asserting that an attachment or
gamishment  of $47 million, or more, is
necessary to secure a remedy for its claims.
MDC’s application acknowledged, however,
that it had only actually expended $2.1 million
of its alleged $47 million claimed obligation.
On April 1, 2013, the Authority filed a motion
to dismiss MDC’s PIR Application, which was
granted on October 1, 2013, On October 22,
2013, MDC filed a new application for a
prejudgment remedy, secking an attachment of
CRRA’s assets lo secure an alleged $52 million
obligation. The Authonty filed 2 motion to
dismiss the application on November §, 2013;
the court has not yet ruled on the motion. The
partics arc currently engaged n arbitration
hearings on the question of lability only;
testimony is anticipated to conclude in October
2014, If there is a determination of hability,
additional discovery and arbitration hearings
will be required.  Or February 7, 2012, the
Authority sent lctters to all Mid-Connecticut
Project municipalities advising them that, 1n the

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

event that the Authority is ultimately determined
to be responsible for any portion of MDC’s
claimed costs, each municipality will be
responsible for its pro rata share of such costs.

The Authority has valid defenses and is
vigorously dcfending against the MDC
demands. At this time, the outcome of this
arbitration is uncertain.

In March 2013, Tremont Public Advisors filed a
complaint against the Authority in Connecticut
Superior Court, claiming that the Authority
illegally awarded a contract for Municipal

~ Government  Liaison Services and violated

Connecticut’s  Antitrust  Act, and seeking
injunctions, damages, interest, and attorneys’
fees and costs. The Authorty denies the
allepations and has asserted scveral defenses.
On Janmary 21, 2014, the Authority filed a
motion to dismiss the complaint, which is
pending. Limited discovery is ongoing.

In October 2013, Devone Little filed a
complaint in Connecticut Superior Court against
several parties, including the Authority, alleging
that he was a passenger in a City of Hartford
garbage truck that was struck by a pay loader
owned by the Authority at 300 Maxim Road,
Hartford, and seeking damages for resulting
neck and back injuries. Pursuant to the terms of
the Agreement between the Authority and
NAES Corporation for the operation and
maintenance of the facility, NAES is providing
the Authority with indemnity and a defensce of
this claim. A settlement mediation 1s scheduled
for October 29, 2014,




CSWS

The Mumcipal Solid Waste Management
Agreement (“MSA”) between the Authority and
. the City of Waterbury expired on June 30, 2013.
On July 30, 2013, the City underpaid the
Authority’s invoice for June waste disposal
services, indicating that it disputed the
remainder of the invoice. On May 30, 2014, the
Authority  filed a Demand for  Arbitration,

alleging breach of contract, and claiming
$240,468.41 in damages, together with late

payment charges and costs of collection. The
partics have agreed to attempt to mediate the
dispute on September 16, 2014.

Bridgeport Project

In the early 1990°s, the Authority was named as
a Potentially Respousible Party m the now-
combined federal and State of New Jersey suits
to recover the costs of remediation of the
landfill known as Combe Fill South. The
Authority’s hability was substantially resolved
i the spring of 2009 as a result of a mediated
global settiement. However, one of the settling
parties Is pursuinlg a contribution action against
certain non-settling entities.  The Authonty
continues to monitor remaining casc activities to
the extent they may implicate the Authority.

Other Issues; Subsequent Claims; Resolved
Matters; Unasserted Claims and Assessments

The MDC has included in several monthly
invoices to the Authority a claim for
reimbursement  of certain MDC  legal and
consulting fees.  The Authority has disputed
these charges on the grounds that they are not
related to the MDC’s obligation to operate,

maintain, and repair the WPF during the term of

the Authority-MDC Agreement.

On Auvgust 21, 2014, the Authority was served
with a Complaint of former NAES Corporation
employee Bruce Hart, alleging that he was
mjured while employed by NAES at the
Authority’s waste-to-cnergy facility in Hartford.
The Authority has made a demand for
indemnification pursuant to the temms of 1ts

40

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Compenent Unit of the State of Connecticnt

Agreement with NAES for the operation and
maintenance of the facility.

On November 12, 2013, Michael C. Harrington
appealed the Connecticut Freedom of
Information Commission’s November 16, 2012,
finding that certain records not produced by the
Authority in rcsponse to a request from Mr.
Harrington were exempt from production under
the Freedom of Information Act; a hearing on
the matter is scheduled to be held in Superior
Court in Hartford on October 21, 2014.

In January 2006, thc Authority’s pollution
Liability insurance carrier, American
International  Specially  Lines  Insurance
Company (“AISLIC”) settled with numerous
commercial and residential neighbors of the
Hartford Landfill who had filed suit against the
Authority in 2001, claiming that the Authority
negligently maintained and operated its Hartford
Landfill and that the Harford Landfill

- constituted a public nuisance. On May 4, 2006,

AISLIC initiated a declaratory judgment action
in federal district court seeking a declaration
that AISLIC is not obligated to indemnify the
Authority in connection with the settled lawsuit
and that AISLIC should be awarded the amount
it spent on defense and indemmnification of the
Authority. This matter was settled in November
2013.

Two contracts between CRRA and Covanta
Mid-Conn, Inc. for the operation and
maintenance  of components of the Mid-
Comnecticut Project expired on May 31, 2012.
Several  Covanta Mid-Conn  invoices  were
disputed by CRRA and remained unpaid as of
6/30/14.  The wmatter has subsequently been
resolved.

On March 31, 2009, the Authority submifted a
timely water discharge renewal application
seeking the re-issuance of the Authority’s
National  Pollutant  Discharge  Elimination
System (“NPDES”) Permut to the Connccticut
Department of Environmental Protection, now
known as the Connecticut Department of Energy
and  Environmental Protection (“DEEP™).
Review of the Authority’s permut  renewal
application by DEEP is ongoing, including




whether the  current  location,  design,
construction and capacity of the cooling water
intake structurcs at the Authority’s South
Meadows Facility represents best technology

available (“BTA”) for minnmizing adverse
environmental impact and, if not, what
additional operational and/or technological

measures reflecting BTA will need to be
implemented at the Facility.

The Authority is subject to numerous tederal,
state and local environmental and other laws and
regulations and management believes it 1s in
substantial ~ compliance  with  all  such
governmental laws and regulations.

13. RESTATEMENT

During 2013, the Authorily exercised its right to
terminate an operations and maintenance service
agreement for its recycling center. Pursuant to
the agrecement, the Authority paid the operator
approximately $2.9 mullion for unrecovered
investment  costs and took ownership of
equipment utilized by the contractor to operate
the recycling center.

The Authority initially accrued for, and
expensed, the contract lermination payment
during the ycar ended Junc 30, 2013, During
2014, the Authority determined that the contract
termination payment was for equipment to be
used in the recycling center and not a contract
cost. Accordingly, the Authority has restated its
financial statements for June 30, 2013 for the
correction of the error as follows:

41

Materials Innovation and Recycling Buthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

As Previously As
Reported  Adjustment  Reslated
Balance Sheet
Deprecinble capital assets, net $ 8o S 20K 5 BASI
Net Position
Iivested in capiial assets, nel of relaled delt § M3 § 2916 5 11488
Total et postion $ 165332 % 2916 & leda4m
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Solid waste operations $IRle s 26§ 9™
Total operating expenses $ 13014 S 2me 8 1718
Operatiag loss ’ $ U0M) & e § (3%
Change in riet pesiti: S oLl S 286§ sy
14. NEW ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED AND

NOT YET ADOPTED

GASB Stalement No. 68, dccounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. The
primary objective of this statement is 1o
improve accounting and f{inancial reporting
by state and local governments for pensions.
It also improves information provided by
state and local governmental cmployers
about financial support for pensions that is
provided by other entities. This statement
replaces the requircments of Statements No.
25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for
Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50,
Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
pension plans that are administered through
trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter
jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain
criteria. The requirements of statements No.
25 and No. 50 remain applicable to pension
plans that are not administered through
trusts covered by the scope of ths
statcment.

The scope of this statement also addresses
accounting and financial reporting for
pensions that are provided (o the employees
of state and local governmental employers




through pension plans that are administered
through  trusts  that  have  certain
characteristics as defined in the statement.
It establishes standards for measuring and
recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources,
and expense/expenditures.  For defined
benefit pensions, this statement identifies
the methods and assumptions that should be
used to project benefil payments, discount
projected benefit payments to their actuarial
present value, and attribute that present
value to periods of employee service. Note
disciosure and required supplementary
information requirements about pensions
also arc addrcssed.  This statement 1s
effective for periods beginning after June
15, 2014, with carly implementation
encouraged.

GASB  Statement No. 69, Government
Combinations and Disposals of Government
Operations.  This statement establishes
accounting and [inancial reporting standards
related to government combinations and
disposals  of  government
including mergers and acquisitions.  This
statement vequires disclosures to be made
that will enable financial statement users to
evaluate the nature and financial effect of
those transactions. This statcment is
effective  for periods Dbeginning after
December 15, 2013, with earlier application
encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees. 'I'hs statement will
require a government that extends a
nonexchange  financial  guarantee  to
recognize « liability when qualitative factors
and historical data indicate that 1t is more
likely than not that the government will be
required to make a payment on the
guarantee. An obligation guaranteed In a
nonexchange transaction will need to be
reported until it is legally released as an
obligor.  This statement is cffective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2013, with
carlicr application encouraged.

GASB  Statement  No. 71, Pension
Transition  for  Contributions  Made
Subsequent (o the Measuremen! Date, an
amendment of GASB Siatement No. 68.

operations, -

42

Materials Innovation and Recycling ARuthority

& Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

This statement addresses an issue regarding
the application of the transition provisions
of statement No. 68, Accounting and
Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to
amounts associated with contributions, if
any, made by a state or local government
employer or non-employer contributing
entity to a defined benefit pension plan after
the measurement date of the government’s
beginning net pension liabihity. The
provisions of the statement arc to be
adopted simultaneously with statement No.
68.

Management has nol estimated the extent
of the potential impact of these statements
on the Authority’s financial statements.




34

1odoy sgoupny juspusdapu| 988

SETS61 L3 159¢°2) S 132 $ POT'R| 5 RG] [ SE6°¢1 $ 08LT SROSZ $ SEL'T S
6STITI . . 60191 6E8'06 oo [ v [
¥8L - - - - - (7 - . -
LOPIE . . 60179t ROT'S 1 . . - - :
977'E - - - Plady - . - . “
18182 . - 60191 [4orsl - - : - -
890°6L E - . 195°SL E B LOS'Y - ot
(9S7°65¢€) . - (9$4°L2) (Z65°0Cy) . . - - ($r0°C
PTE'SLY - . 9891 £60'S0F . . LOS'E - 39077
6L1'0¥T . - [T SOIEET - - LOSE - YOT|
SY1'g6! . . £55°6T 826141 - - . - #98
9L6'E8 (1] Lr9 [T [ 68¢7) 1512 SOO'tT SEO8C SIEC
£69'C vl 2f : REGH 0L vt .
$69°C [ . 8 . SE0H i (4] -
78218 $9¢°2) 829 S81T PEY $8Y°1 L1010 STO'EC 196°L2 ST
. (s9¢72) . E 8¢S ) - 80T 0Fy [YANI
RTE'T - . - 9§ . . . : wre .
690'9 - - . §98°1 - - - POT'Y -
850'p1 - . 9¢ 189 39171 085°L bi 0$5°Y -
LI8'8S 3 - $ 679 $ or1T 8 poE L s AT § ££9'C $ £39°€T S 98991 $ 9ES°! 3
1210 ), suoHBURUNY UoIstAlC] UOISIAICY uoIsIALQ) 102l04g 100{04 ws{g pung
Rutjakony Hypue Kuadosg 15a4IN0S 15EOUINOS NINDOUUO))-PUA alsea\ plos [Lislicls)
10105UU0 )
{spuesnoy | ui saeoq)
$10T 0E ANDP O SV
NOLLISOd L3N A0 INFWILVLS 40 ITNATHIS DNINIGINOD - NOLLYIWYOAINT AYVINIWITAdNS
£40 | 98eg ININIIUUOY) J0 VIS Y] §0 1)) Juduodwio) y
Y LIGIHX3 ALRIOHLAV ONITOADHY ANV NOLLVAONNI STVINILVIN

SLASSY IVLOL

SLASSY INJHUND-NON TVLOL

10U "SISO RDUBNSSE PUQQ pue uawdojdaAd()

e sadapuc

ey
ssaufoud wl wolpnsun?)
puey

jgeadapuos
12u "ajqedaidacy R10 L

uchEIsdp pRIBUTIY S8E]

wawdinby

e
qeioasda(y
SNAL

1285y PAOLISAY
SLASSY INHRAUID-NON

SLASSY ANDUUND TYLOL

SIETY PIDLIISIY {10
S1ufRAINDD YSED PUE \se))

IS19S Y PRIDLsSeY

SIOFSY PAOINERIUTY 110 )
SPURS JaYI0 Wedl angy
sasuadya predaig
Aiopuasug
SOUEAOL|E O 13U IGEAIIIN SIUNOIDY
sjus|eAInbR 1jSEd pUk YSE))
ISIOSEY POINISAIVY
S.LASSY ANHUAUND
SLASSY



|44

vodsy s103pny uspusdapuy 999

SMOTANI QAUUFLFA ANV STILITIEVITIVLOL
SMO[JU[ PaLIaja(]

SALLITIEVIT TVLOL

SALLITTEVIT WHAL-DNOTTVLOL

S$335SB PILoLISaIUn WOl Aqeded (Ri0],
saugqen Byg
ISI9SSR PIIOUISIUN UKL DjqBAZg
SALLIHAVIT IWEAL-ONOT

SALLIHAVITT LNIMAND TV.LOL
$19$88 PAIDLISIE woy djqeded (B10]
SOUHIGEL] JUALND 1BYIo pue sesuddxa paidady
1830858 pRosLsal wolj qeded
S1asse paraulsaiun woyy ajqeded (o0
SpUTY 13410 01 an(y
1GRL) JUALIND JaY10 pue sasuadxs paniaooy
sfqeded siunosoy
S|IUPUEL JO 2deD nsop-isod pue ansop)
ISIIESR PRIDLISAIUN WOY JJ(RAEY
SALLIHEVET LNBYHAD

“w

NOLLISOd LIN GNY SA2UNO0STY 40 MOTINI QFYYFATA ‘ST LIUEVI

69F°€T {($9¢°C 08 437 Obt 0£T1 99°F 658°8 S$6°8 - SLUY
[543 - - - - - - STy L91°C -
LL80T (89¢°2) 08 X34 0bp 0€Z'1 99 e $8L°Q
008’ - - - - - - 00S°¢ - -
005°€ - - - - - - 008’ - -
005°€ - - - - . - 00S'€ - -
LLE'LT ($9¢°0) 08 234 oby 0Lt 299y pee'y 88L'G SLil
960y - bl - - - $88°¢ 0L 124 -
960t - vl - - - 888'¢ 0L (41 -
187'€1 (69€°7) 99 27 O 0£T' | vLL FoSy £99'9 SLil
- (59¢°0) 6¢ ovi 761 - 8T SOp' 247
86p'8 - - pLA g1z 68 b4 £6'C LFSE $69
obL'y - L 611 SE 1514 869 Ti6'l LS
34 - S - S - - N - S - S » - $
je10 |, suopRUILLg UoISIA ] UDISIALG 199{014 193{01 WoISAS
furahooy ypue) Apadoly IS YOG 182aYIN0Yg MIHIBUUO)-PUA dsex PLOS jesaudn)
INDUDBUUCY
(spuesnoy | ui sieqjoq))
£107 ‘0f INNE O SV
{(praunued) NOILLISOd LAN 40 ANFIWALYLS 40 A 1NAIHDS ONINIZINOD - NOLLVINIOANT AUV INAWITddNS
€Jo 7 38y JNONIULG]) o 981G Y] Jo Jiu‘} Jwauodwuo)) v
V LIGIHX3

ALIGOHALNY DNITOADIY ANY NOLLVAONNI STTVIHILVIA



3 4

poday s,1011pny juapusdapu] 58§

SETS61 $ ($9€°0) $ £v9 $ yo7°81 120901 8 $8¢° $ IIYWATE 0T 3 $30°8¢ S SELT $ 10SEY 40 MO TINI QAUPFAEA "SHILITIEVIT TVLOL
99L'LL g €95 19872 186°C01 561 €L7% £p9'81L 0cl'6l 095"t NOILLISOd LN TVLOL
IPL09 . £9¢ [ATAN vol vl §el €LE'S €151 0gl'6l 6E8°L palousaun
8be . 7 N e N . N B B PAIDLISAY {2101
Iy . N N S B . - B od J2u PRIDLISAI 1YI()
608 “ . - g . . . . . AMOLI50 PIOJTUL]|BA BILRAQD)
. - - - . . . - - - pury sndins SunessdQ

0] paroLnsay
9LY'0lL - - 6019t 6E£8°06 B - L0S€ - 1z 149p palepal jo 1au 's1asse (ended ut paIsaad]

NOLLISOd 1IN

12104, SUONEULUILZY uoIsIALg UOISIAL(] UOISIANQ UOISIAL(C 10alo1yd 10304y wasAg pun,
Hujpohony ltupueq Auado g 1S9 IN0S 1$EIYINOG INDHIUOY-PIN 2USEAL PHOS [ENETSY
INOLIBUUO))

€30 gadey
V LIGIHX3

(spuesnoy, ui saejjeQq)
P10T ‘0€ ANNT 40 SV

(panuuod) NOILISOd LAN 40 INFWALVLS A0 FTINATHIS ONINIEINOD - NOLLY WIOANI AUV INTWAT44NS
IMDIDULOY) JO 3)BIS 343 JO Hup) Juanoeduwio)) v

ALIMOHLNY DNITIADTY ANV NOLLVAONNI STVId4LV]




9

voday stoupny wapuadapu) 20§

99L' 1LY 3 . 3 98 $ 3 §<t by YAV | 981 S ogiol g 09¢"t b3 POIAd 40 pud “HONIOY BN {BI0 L
RPT'891 - (U3 erI'0tl Sk Se0¢l PIES gLy $08 powad jo Butawdag “woyiso | 2\ 1r10),
818'c . %) {6.8°¢) 1299°r) (00) g’ (£0e) Lor'et Sy4 somsog N 1 adueny
. N . < €869 - . e (16472 rLR {In0) et saz;sued
- - . - . B 188" - D BUINION {BHIBE JO UOURGILO )
815°¢ - (8) wedin) {06! oy} (502 Al (et Siajsuel] 21042 [S507]) Aui0du}
6567 - N 18.°F (€62) - 2 (cicc) 61 (64} 130 ‘(sasuddxy) sanunaay dupessdg-uon
[{54) . - (¥} (G0E} . ¥ {00 . @) (sasadxa) AL I3y
- . . N R . . . - B SIS00 IUAUDINRS
LY . - 182y . . . . . - SINIQEY PRS0 150d JO JJO-IIM L0 Urer)
601 R R v £ - & 3% 6! B AULODU: JUDLIERAU]
(sasuadxy) sanuasay Buneaad-uoy
6LI't . (8) (6e) (zseo0) (06) toss'1) L007T 8961 @ (ss0y) amodu Bupeandoy
10191 . - - C08's1 » oY < - L1t UOLIEZIMOUIE put uonelsad
082'L1 - (3) (6LL) 0p9't 06) (9581} L00'C 896'C1 - uone2LIoOwY
pue wongIda(] 34045Q {55077} amodu] SunriadQ
780'901 8 rGS A (A4l £59°0€ (1e) FRINTS - sasuadxy Bupesadgy jeso),
SLE' - - - - . B - - - VHRUDS G vonrgusi(y
161'9 ‘ - (74 M) SO 99 L6 - SROLAIRS [RUOLIE AY() pUE Bayel
710t . - 987 % . £01 S9EC 6Lt - [RUIRIND - S3IAIDS
(16€°%) . - - - - - (T68'c) B - S|UYPURY JO 21ED 2Inse|-150d PUB 2INSOL )
L1 . 1% (r2) 0t - . 9 069 M SN pue IUBLRI
£85°L6 (581} €) L0 £8e°E L0671 0L6'8T it 1987Ce - suonEiada sisea prog
sasuadxy SunyriadQ
IS 81} . Sii £:9°6 $61°6C SLOGL . $INUIANY Fulesad ej0 L
018'r . - 3H s - . L0t B sanuaans Junerado gy
15895 - . - 168 - FLSOC - 9OR'GE . soges K&
£15°91 (<81} - . - - all - 68761 - SIRPO
$8SSY b “ $ - § - S S8l $ 08¢°¢1 ) Tor's $ - TS S - s S1aquidy
oiIeyd amarag
S3MUIAIY Buyraad(
1830 UISIALCY uoISIAI oy 123l04d WASAG pun,j
Fuipokony RN sragines NI )-PUN arse s Pios {ziagan
123U )

(Spuesnoy | vl saef{oq)
FHOTTOL ANNT JO SY
NOILISOd LAN NI SZONVHD ANV $SISNUIXT ‘STAINEATY 40 FTAGTHIS ONINIGNOD ~ NOLLVIWHOINT AUVINAWA 1ddAS
INIPIBUVOY) JO MBS 3Y] Jo J1un) Jusuoedwo) v
a4 LI9IHXY ALIIOILAY ONFIDADYNY ANV NOLLYAONNIE STVIIZLVIA



Ly

podoy s0upny udpusdopul 995

178'19 S - § &Y S ori'e S [A{tNa ) [FAS 2 S 16278 S 019914 $ 9€8°1 S
$97'b6 - 98% A 966 31 LR ST 0968 L01
(3 7Ar{N] s - $ LSt LI ST AN S s EiNe (1) S (Cray) ( S 0L9°2 $ (YA N
(159°0) - 3 ($88°L) wio E St (RE7 7} 0y L8

- - - (18%°2) $88°9 . - < (V147 vL¥
(1s9'D) - { (p) (grt) - Sk wsez) - )
(16£°95) - - {809°25) . (©1c) - -
98L'11) - . . . . - -
{0oz'st) - - (809°2¢) - ‘ 9i) - -

$68 - N - $68 - - - - -

£€62'8 - . 8178 : I 8¢ 61 -

60t ¢ N 2% - 4 $€ 61 .

$81°8 . - bS8 - . . - . -

900°81 . (3] [k by9°E W 3 (zet'h) 1ETL 188
(SLET) . - - - . (sL¢'t) . . -

- 009°L 129 i (zes) - 44 (%) (81$°L) 882
081°L01) I (06) (689) @ire) (epel) 008703} (1720 {€08'98) g1t

» (009°2) L9 188°L ($26) - . - il 9

195928 s - $ €Tt § oL $ €16 0Ly"Ch N pov 68 S 650°C S 1EF 1L $ 44 $

130}, suayenutyy VOISIAL] ISIALG UaIsIaIQ] 122f0s4 1wafosg WaysAS pung
Juijodooy \typue Anados g IEEFENTITIN 1SEAIN0G NN 3RO Y-PLA aAseM pHOS jedauaty
DRIV

Z 3o 1 28eg

J LI9IHX3

(spursnoy | ul srejjoqy)
Y107 ‘0€ ANNF AFAANT VAR THL YOI

SAMOTE HSVD 40 TTNAIHIS DNINIGWOD - NOLLYIWYOINI AYVINIWI 1dINS
IMD{IDUUOTY JO AelG a4 Jo ) Juduodwo)) v

ALIYOHLNY ONITDADTY ANV NOLLYAONNI STVINALYIA

2034 Jo pua *sjuafeainba yses pur yseD)

aead Jo Bupuiaq tsHuateambl ysed pur ysey

- SHIBEAINDS YISO PUE YSBD Ul ISLIINP JIN

1y Sursuei g jendery-uoN Aq (Pas) papianig 1yse D 1N

{mono}

WY yse
SA3) PUB ISB UL JIYIO

SN MBIV SUldBRULY [RHARD-UON; AG (P3ST)) POPIAGL4 USE))
sanlalay Suouew 4 potejay pue nde)) £q pasi yseD) 19N

199p ukaj-Funj uo pred (ediduuy

1Gap uu-HU0] BO P1ad 1s3say)

51988¢ Jended JO UOHANIISUOD pu UoLsInboy

SANIIYRE| AIBD WNSO{I130d pur SO jjIEpUL] JOf SuRUAR]
wowidinba Jo $ajey WL SPIDCLY

SIHANIY Buounui,g pare[ay pur fuide) £ passy SMOLf Yse)

SIYIANIY BUNISIAUL AQ POPIADAYG YSBD) JON
SIUBULSDALL UO 1822230
SIUBLIISIAU] WIOL] SPIAD0I4

SaIABOY Bu1soan) K( papIavig Smofq Yse))

SALIY SunraadQ A (DIs))) PIpIADAG YsHD) 1aN
YAHYIS 01 uohngiiisiq

Spuny 1ayio ol spauide,|

saokopduts pue suanddns o1 sluowiley

SPUNJ JTI0 WIOY PIAIIOAL SludwIe,]

$IDNAL0S BUIPIAOID WIOY PIAIDIAL SWAUIAE

SNV BuneradQ Aq (Pas) PIpIACA] SMOl4 yseD



8¥

uoday stoupny juapuadopu) 00g

900°81 $ " g ySt S LLTL N FEY'E S (0 g 123 N (Zo!'1) $ S Ls§ N SRANOY Bupraad() £q papiaoag yse 1aN
009'L) . 2% ! (zes) . ic (@) (8p<L) 1y spuny Jaipu r anQg
(064 - (Z8) 507 it St (228D 009' Q11 Sa1mjiqer) J1o pur sosuadxa poruoae “aqeded sjunodoy
Ul (9seasnap) asealou|
009'L - L9 18872 [$449) : . | 9 SpUnj 13po Wol angg
(€L6'1) . . . (CI9)] . . . [FATND] . SIASSE JURLND Y0 pue sasuadxd predony
SLY . . ~ D - . . 129 - ALIURAU]
FIO'C - (0¢) 9€7 662 £56 9CE | e U 9UBALIDAL SILROIDY
Ul aseardRp (asealdul)
IBJSURSL O 12U SRl pue swasse u salfuey)y
- . . . - - - . . . - ($0s0dXR) SLuUL INPO)
- i . - - . . . - . SHLPUE JO 3IED AINSO[-150d PuR AUNSO[D 10} UOISIAOLY
[43% . - N . - 767 - . - SIS 0UeNss) puoq pue luswdo|aap jo uonezIoLY
60L°S1 - - CoLsl - ~ - - il s1asse [ended o uonerdasdagy
, samanor Junziado Aq (pasn) papraosd yses 1au of
swoan (530]) Sunesado atouoas vj siusuusn{py
6L1I k3 - § (8 ¢ (eet) S (Zseon s (0o g (ussl) s Loz g R9GT) § win $ awoaur (ssop) Junesed(
. tsananidy Buneasd() £q (pasi)) papiaoayg ysey
- 19N 03 (85077} AWdU | BunesddQ) JO UONRIBUOINY
0], suoneung UISIAI(Q HOIStAL() 192004 12ltuy walsks pun,
Kpadoay 1SEALINOS IN22UUOT)- Prig NS PHOS [ZENE)
nonxaue Yy
(spussnoy ] uj stejjo(y)
PI6Z ‘0€ ANAC QAUNT WVAA THL YOA
(p3nukuo)) SAMOTA HSYD 40 ' 1NUAHIS DNINIFINOD - NOLLVIWIOANI AUV INIWETAINS
730 7 3deg 1U30I3UU0)) [0 3)8IS 9 Jo nup) yuwsuodwo)) v
J L1I918X3 ALRIOHLAOV ¢

TDAD3Y ANV NOLLYAONNI STVING.




ov

uoday s oupny Juspusdapu] 90g

8PS . - QS . . . - N co_—_.uOn» 191 P3YILISAL RO |
9pi’T 14 - . . 25671 ot [T - SI9SSE PAIDLISA JUALND i pred aq o) saiiqet jero )
9p1'T w1 - - - Q€61 0L [54) - SALIIQEN L)
S}OSSE PAIILAISOE JUIAIND I3IM pied 3q 0) SANPIIYEL S$37]
60T 1 " RS M €61 07 vZI - siua(eanba (523 pue Ysed PRI JUILND (210
8 - 8y E - - - - spuny pajood - 15ty uoidulyy Jo umo g
919°1 R . . . 919') . . . pury anusAdy
F&dy - N - . ice - - - pury snjkns JunesadQ)
241 . - . . - . $ZL N wawifed jo saueiznd oISy
0os - “ 00S . . . . - MO02052 PIOJEUTIB AL BILEAD)
p1 1 . - - . - - - AUBYS 3NUBAZL AHPOWILIO,)
oL - - . - - 0L - - pury uongonpa fupoAaas projuet jo L)
TRUBSDALL DUk m_:a_mzsvu YSED PUE SED PAIOUIEUIUILINYD
uONIS0d JouU PaydLISIY
L0t $ - 601°91 & 688706 - $ - N LOS'E $ . $ 1z S 1G9p Pa3E(a- 0 Jau 'spasse (epded i pajsaany uorsed jay
o}, uoIStAI] UOISIALCT UOISIALQ 12lold JRETOYN UIDISAS pur,j
Sunphoay fpue Kusdoly 159 IN0S 1SEA|INOY TRLI3UUG)PLHA 31SEAL PIOS [et3uary
IND0HULD )
(spuesnoy  ul siefo()
$10Z ‘0f ANNT 40 SV
NOLLISOd L3N 40 TAATHIS ONINITWOD - NOILYIWYOANI AYVINHAA 14418
TJo | a3eq 1RIIDIULOD) JO 33vIG 3Y) Jo U] Judnodine) v
O LIGIHX3 ALRIOHLINY ONI'IDADHY ANY NOILVAONNI STVIHALVIA



noday s105pny Juapuadapuy 295

99L7 L1 98°Lt 1347601 S sS1 LLEs [RORY| g 0f1'01 $ 09871 $ UOLISUS JIN 1RI0L
L9 €5L°¢ Po1vI St L'y QLrsl Getol ot uotisod 12t papLISasLA 1RI0]
LSy 6% Sl a0y 99 14284 paleaiiisopuy)
80T 80¥°Z - - uonEZ|tgels 90f di )
L8 B . DUESNARG
061 - - N Junaiony
LLLY Syl 0Lyl . amsojs 10afoid-1s0ga0ai01g
£8L°L £8L1 - - . [UNLO[-150(
6L 0oL -
805 - - 803
962 h 96T . wiawidojaaap (pipue]
CrE'S [S2NY . - [BETENG LT
yESY L6060 - LE£§°¢ jeduRny
£59°9 - R4 [SIR’] 99z SAUATUNUOY 30§ AN
$6¢ 6L . . asuddxa yoneing uoaus
SLE - $ - - $ sl $ S UOLIBZ!| (QRIS ADIAIAR 193]
130} PRY
tuonsod jau parduISIsUN
1210, uoIIAIC} LOISIAIQ UOISIALC 13alo1g 399{0a g WASAG ouny
Hypuey Lindasg ISOMYINOG 1seoneg INONOIUVOY-PIA 2sep Piog [eI2UDD)
M2VUU0 )

(spuesnoy J, uy sagyjoq)
F10T ‘0€ ANNTL 40 SV
(panuyuo’y) NOILLISOd LAN 40 ATNATHIS HONINTIGNOD - NOLLYWHOAINI AUVINTIWITddAS
10D13I3UN0Y) 30 AJVIS Y3 30 Ju(] Jusuedwio) v
ALTHOHLAY ONITIADZY ANV NOLLYAONNI STVIYILVIN

7jo 7088y
D LIGIHX3



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Materials Innovation and Recyching Authority
Hartford, Connecticut

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amcrica and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Materials Innovaton and Recycling Authorty (Authority),
which comprisc the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereondated 2014,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considercd Authority's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit proccdurcs that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of Authority’s internal contrel. i

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal cowse of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or dctect and correet,
misstatements on a timely basis. A marerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deliciency, or a
""combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencics in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencics. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal conirol that we

consider to be material weaknesses. However, matenial weaknesses may cxist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

51




As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Authority’s financial statements are {ree from matcrial
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rcgulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noled certain matters that we reported to management of the Authority is a scparate letter dated __ ,2014.

Parpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the cffectiveness of the entity’s intemal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not sujtable for any
other purpose.

New \’()rk’ New \lrork
e 2014

52




